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VISION
Statement

Enabling the people to live their lives
healthy, people should eat chicken &
it should be Big Bird’s Chicken.

MISSION
Statement

Big Bird ensures the consistent
availability of traceable, hygienic,
healthy & economical chicken meat &
processed chicken products to meet the
requirements of our valued customers
and consumers through exercising
the competitive edge of quality at
our integrated poultry production
facilities. We strive for the wellbeing
and sustainable growth of our valued
customers, great people, environment
and the society.
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He is the visionary founder of the Big Bird Group, which includes Big Bird
Poultry Breeders (Pvt.) Limited, Grandparent Poultry (Pvt.) Limited, Big Bird
Foods Limited, Big Feed (Pvt.) Limited and Green Nature Farms. Under his
leadership, the Group has become a leading player in its industry. Mr. Basit
also serves as Director of several prominent organizations, including Punjab
Thermal Power Limited, Punjab Agriculture & Meat Company, the Technical
Education & Vocational Training Authority, Quaid-e-Azam Thermal Power
Company, Pakistan France Business Alliance, Punjab Halal Development
Agency, and Pak-France Business Alliance. He is currently a Chairman of
Pakistan Poultry Association.

In addition to his current roles, Mr. Basit has held several significant
positions in the past. He was the Chairman of the Punjab Industrial Estate
Development and Management Company (PIEDMC), South Punjab
Forest Company, and the Punjab Board of Investment and Trade. He
also served as a Director of the Punjab Food Authority, Punjab Industrial
Estate Development Management Company, and the Pak Turk Education
Foundation. His contributions extend beyond business, as he is a member
of the Board of Governors of Sheikh Zayed Medical Complex, a life member
of the SAARC Chamber of Commerce and Industry, a member of the
Syndicate of the University of Veterinary and Animal Sciences, President
of the Public Health Education Society, and President of the Lahore District
Anti-Tuberculosis Association.

Mr. Basit’s influence reaches both national and international levels. He
was a former President of the Lahore Chamber of Commerce and Industry
and the Vice President of the World Poultry Science Association (Pakistan
Branch). He represented Pakistan at the Asia Africa Public Private Joint
Forum and has been part of delegations led by the President of Pakistan
during state visits to China, and by the Prime Minister of Pakistan to Athens,
Morocco, Libya, and Egypt in 2006. He also accompanied the Chief Minister
of Punjab on official tours to Iran in 2008, Turkey in 2009, and Dubai in 2010.
Additionally, Mr. Basit is a permanent member of the Lahore Gymkhana
Club and a life member of the Cosmopolitan Club, Lahore.

Mr Abdul Basit
Chairman
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Dr M. Mustafa Kamal
Chief Executive Officer
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Dr Abdul Karim
Non-Executive Director

Dr Muhammad Aleem
Non-Executive Director
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Dr. Muhammad Mustafa Kamal is the CEO and Executive
Director of Big Bird Foods Limited, a leading player in
Pakistan’s poultry and food processing industry. With
a strong background in management and extensive
experience of over 45 years in the sector, Dr. Kamal has
played a pivotal role in driving the company’s growth
and innovation, ensuring the delivery of high-quality food
products to local and international markets. Under his
leadership, Big Bird Foods has expanded its operations
and cemented its position as a trusted brand in the
industry. He is also the director of Big Bird Poultry Breeders,
Big Feed and Grand Parent Poultry. Additionally, he is a
former Chairman of the Pakistan Poultry Association
(PPA) and ex-member syndicate committee at University
of Veterinary and Animal Sciences.

Dr. Abdul Karim is a Chief Executive at Big Feed (Pvt.) Ltd.
He is also a Managing Director of Big Bird Poultry Breeders
(Pvt.) Ltd. with a qualified Doctor of Veterinary Medicine,
and masters in Animal Nutrition. He also possesses over
45 years of industry experience in R&D of poultry and
poultry feed production. He is a crucial decision maker
for the production and marketing work carried out by Big
Bird Group. He has also served as former Chairman of
the Pakistan Poultry Association.

Dr. Muhammad Aleem is an accomplished academic and
professional with over 40 years of experience in animal
sciences, spanning teaching and research. He earned
his PhD in Animal Sciences from the United States and
completed his postdoctoral training at the University of
London. Dr. Aleem has held leadership roles, including
serving as Head of the Department and Dean of Livestock
Business Management at the University of Veterinary and
Animal Sciences (UVAS). Currently, he oversees the GP
Laboratory, a facility that provides essential diagnostic
services to the Big Bird Group and the broader commercial
poultry industry. Beyond his professional endeavors,
Dr. Aleem holds key positions as Chairman of both the
Punjab Livestock Breeding Authority and the Livestock &
Dairy Development Board, at provincial and federal levels
respectively.
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Mrs. Saadia Karim is a partner at Green Nature Farms and is the
founder and CEO of her furniture and interior design company, Oak
and Teak. She has extensive managerial and marketing knowledge and
expertise. She is also proficient in designing, marketing and production
of furniture and other related interior designing. She is also a member
of the Lahore Chamber of Commerce and Industries.

Mrs Saadia Karim
Female Director

Mr. Salman Basit completed his Bachelor of Business
from Central Queensland University, Sydney, Australia, and
later obtained a postgraduate degree in Business from the
University of Newcastle, New South Wales, Australia. He has
been associated with Big Bird Group since 2006 and currently
serves as the Director of all its companies. With his extensive
experience, Mr. Salman Basit is also actively involved in
corporate activities that contribute to the development of the
poultry and frozen food sector in Pakistan. He served as a
member of the Executive Committee of the Lahore Chamber
of Commerce & Industry during 2015-16 and 2018-19. He
is a member of the Executive Committee of the Lahore
; / ’ District Anti-Tuberculosis Association, which operates clinics
providing free treatment to underprivileged TB patients in

Mr Salman Basit Lahore. He is also a member of the Lahore Gymkhana Club.
Executive Director

Mohammad Ahmad Kamal is an Executive Director and
a key member of the leadership team at Big Bird Foods
Limited (BBFL), bringing strategic vision and a dynamic
approach to the company’s growth. He holds an MSc
in Management from Queen Mary University of London,
equipping him with a strong foundation in business strategy,
financial management, and corporate governance.

Leveraging his academic expertise and industry insights,
Ahmad Kamal has played a pivotal role in BBFLs
expansion, operational efficiency, and financial planning. His
contributions have driven the company towards innovation,
digital transformation, and sustainable business practices,
strengthening its market presence in Pakistan’s food industry.

Mr Mohammad Ahmad Kamal
Executive Director
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Mr Tariq Hamid
Independent Director

Mr M. Tabassum Munir
Independent Director

Major General (R) Asghar
Ali Chaudhry
Independent Director
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Mr. Tarig Hamid is an Independent Director and currently serves as a Director
at AlBaraka Bank. He has held numerous prestigious positions throughout his
career, including Chairman of the Punjab Privatization Board and the Task Force
for the Revival of Sick Industrial Units. He was the Chief Executive Officer of the
Corporate & Industrial Restructuring Corporation (CIRC) and also chaired the
Committee for the Revival of Sick Industrial Units. Mr. Tariq Hamid has served
as the Provincial Minister for Finance, Planning & Development, Industries,
Environment, and Excise & Taxation for the Government of Punjab, and as the
Chairman of the Water & Power Development Authority (WAPDA). Additionally,
he held the position of Federal Minister for Water & Power for the Government of
Pakistan. His extensive experience includes being the Director and Chairman of
Dane Foods Limited, Managing Director of Coates Lorilleux Pakistan Limited, and
Director at several prominent companies including Packages Limited, Tetra Pak
(Pakistan) Limited, Nestle Milkpak Limited, and Tri-Pack Fiims Limited. Mr. Hamid
has also served as President of the Lahore Chamber of Commerce & Industry,
Chairman of the Pakistan Pulp Paper & Board Makers’ Association, Chairman of
the Management Association of Pakistan, and President of the Pakistan Industrial
Employers Federation in Lahore.

Mr. Muhammad Tabassum Munir has worked for more than three decades, as
Member Lahore Stock Exchange, till January 2014. He also served on its Board
of Directors for multiple terms, including as its Vice President. Additionally, he was
Member Pakistan Mercantile Exchange. He has served on the Board of Directors
at Hi-Tech Lubricants Ltd from April 2015 to October 2021, Synthetic Products
Enterprises Ltd from October 2014 to October 2021, and Annoor Textile Mills Ltd
from 1987 to 1989.

His skills of managing and participating in all-inclusive Capital Market and its
infrastructural development matters are widely acknowledged. He has participated
in numerous seminars, round tables, conferences, workshops, and has gained
valuable domain knowledge and experience. It has strengthened his dedicated
role and capacity in the management of corporate affairs.

His current engagement(s) include: e Director, LSE Ventures Ltd.

Maj. Gen. (R) Asghar Ali Chaudhry is associated with Big Bird Foods Limited as an
Independent Director and became part of the Company in August 2024. He holds
an MBBS from Nishtar Medical College, M.Sc in Advance Medical Administration
from Quaid-e-Azam University, ENT Specialist Course from Armed Forces Post
Graduate Medical Institute Rawalpindi and has undergone specialized Advance
Medical Administration courses from USA, Germany, and Austria.

Maj. Gen. (R) Asghar Ali Chaudhry has had an illustrious career in military medicine
and administration. He began as a Regimental Medical Officer in the 1971 War and
later served as a General Duty Medical Officer and ENT Specialist in various military
hospitals, including CMH Okara, CMH Malir, CMH Lahore, and CMH Bahawalpur.
His expertise led him to an overseas appointment in Saudi Arabia as an ENT
Specialist. Rising through the ranks, he commanded medical units, including
the 42 Field Ambulance and Armed Forces Medical Stores Depot Nowshera,
overseeing critical medical logistics. His roles at GHQ Medical Directorate as
Director of Medical Stores and Equipment Procurement and later as Inspector
General (Hospitals) allowed him to shape medical policies for the Army, Air Force,
and Navy hospitals. He had served as Commandant (Dean) of the Armed Forces
Post Graduate Medical Institute and currently holds the position of CEO of Punjab
Social Security Health Management Company (PSSHMC), overseeing healthcare
operations and hospital management.
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Mr. Muhammad Ali Ahsen
Chief Financial Officer

Mr Muhammad Riaz

Company Secretary & Legal Head

Mr Kalim Ullah
Head Of Internal Auditor
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Hygiene Stations

Five Changing Rooms
Two for processing and three for further process-
ing

e Separate change room for low risk and high risk
areas in further processing

e  One way flow

* Hygiene stations at each entrance

Workers perform Ablution (Wadhu) before
Slaughtering

e All Slaughtering is manual (by using hands)

e Slaughtering person recites takbeer “Bismillah
Allaahu Akbar”

e Slaughtering person faces kaaba
while slaughtering

Air Chilling Technology

e The only plant in Pakistan equipped with the latest
Air Chilling Technology.

e The temperature of a chicken carcass must
be lowered to at least 2°C within one hour of
slaughter.

e Chickens are suspended separately on a track
that moves through the air chilling tunnel.

e Each bird travels approximately 1.2 kilometers and
remains in the chilling tunnel for about 1.5 hours.

BBFL Annual Report 2025 13



PHOTOGRAPHS OF PRODUCTION FACILITY
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CHAIRMAN'’S

REVIEW

Dear Stakeholders,

It is my privilege to present the Annual Report of Big
Bird Foods Limited for the financial year 2024-25. This
year has been one of consolidation, resilience, and
forward momentum for our company, as we continue to
strengthen our foundations while exploring new horizons
for growth.

A Year of Steady Progress

During the year under review, Big Bird Foods successfully
built upon the milestones achieved in the previous year,
particularly our entry into the Pakistan Stock Exchange.
The transition into a listed entity has enhanced our
governance standards and broadened our access to
capital markets. It has also placed upon us a greater
responsibility to uphold the trust of our investors,
customers, and regulators — a responsibility we take with
the utmost seriousness.

Our operational performance this year reflects our
resilience in navigating macroeconomic headwinds such
as inflationary pressures, volatile input costs, and evolving
market dynamics. Despite these challenges, Big Bird
Foods recorded a growth of 58% in turnover from Rs.
7.2billion last year to Rs.11.36 billion in the year ended
30 June 2025. Gross profit for the year grew to Rs. 2.38
billion and net profit after tax amounted to Rs. 1.16 billion.

Driving Innovation and Sustainability

Innovation and sustainability remain at the core of our
business strategy. We have continued to invest in value-
added products and modernized processing facilities,
ensuring that our offerings meet the growing demand
for convenience, nutrition, and international quality
standards.

At the same time, we recognize that long-term success
must be underpinned by sustainable practices. This year,
we advanced initiatives to reduce waste, improve energy
efficiency, and support environmentally responsible
operations. These steps not only align with our ESG
commitments but also resonate with the expectations of
today’s conscious consumer.

Governance

Sound corporate governance is fundamental to corporate
success and enhances stakeholders’ confidence. We have
designed our corporate governance structure to ensure
maximum compliance with legal and regulatory framework

and meeting the information needs of our stakeholders.
The corporate governance framework applied by Big Bird
Foods is based on Pakistani law, in particular Companies
Act 2017, Code of Corporate Governance and other
statutory, regulatory and compliance requirements that
are applicable to companies listed on the Pakistan Stock
Exchange. To ensure the compliance with all relevant
laws and regulations, the Company has in place a code
of conduct, whistle blowing policy and code of business
ethics among others.

Building for the Future

Looking ahead, Big Bird Foods is well-positioned to
capitalize on opportunities in both domestic and export
markets. With our vertically integrated model, strong
distribution network, and focus on innovation, we aim
to expand our product reach and strengthen our global
footprint.

The future will undoubtedly bring challenges, but we are
confident in our ability to adapt and thrive. By investing in
technology, people, and processes, we remain committed
to delivering sustainable growth and creating long-term
value for all our stakeholders.

Acknowledgment

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | extend my deepest
appreciation to our employees, who remain the true
driving force behind Big Bird Foods’ success. | also wish
to acknowledge the valuable role of my fellow Board
members, whose vision and guidance have made this
progress possible. My sincere thanks are also extended
to our shareholders, customers, regulators, and business
partners for their continued trust and support. Together,
we will continue to build a stronger, more sustainable, and
impactful Big Bird Foods Limited.

With optimism and determination, we look forward to
another year of growth and success.

S

Abdul Basit
Chairman

Big Bird Foods Limited

BBFL Annual Report 2025 17




Dear Shareholders, Customers, and Colleagues,

The year 2024-25 has been a period of resilience, focus,
and forward-looking growth for Big Bird Foods Limited.
As Chief Executive Officer, it gives me immense pride to
share our journey of progress, our achievements, and our
ambitions for the future.

Performance and Progress

| am proud to report that Big Bird Foods achieved record
results this year. Net sales rose sharply to PKR 11.36
billion, representing a 58% increase compared to PKR
7.20 billion in the previous year, reflecting both higher
volumes and stronger demand for our value-added and
ethnic products. Gross profit reached PKR 2.38 billion,
an improvement of 50% year-on-year, underpinned by
operational efficiencies and disciplined cost management.
Profit after tax grew to PKR 1.16 billion, up 39% from PKR
838 million last year, while earnings per share increased
from PKR 2.80 to PKR 3.90, also reflecting a 39%
growth. These results underscore the resilience of our
vertically integrated model and our ability to consistently
create value for our shareholders even amid a challenging
economic environment.

Our listing on the Pakistan Stock Exchange last year
has further strengthened our position. The experience
of operating as a public company has enhanced
transparency, discipline, and accountability, while also
creating new opportunities for partnerships and growth.

Strategic Focus on Growth and Innovation

Innovation remains central to our strategy. During 2024-
25, we launched new value-added and convenience
products to cater to evolving consumer lifestyles. We
continued investing in automation and modern food
technologies, ensuring that Big Bird Foods not only meets
international quality standards but also exceeds customer
expectations in taste, nutrition, and safety.

Our expansion into export markets has also gained
momentum. With a growing global demand for premium
halal food products, we see significant potential in the
Middle East, Africa, and Asia. These steps will pave the
way for Big Bird Foods to evolve into a truly international
brand.

18 Big Bird Food Limited

Commitment to Sustainability

Sustainability is not just a responsibility—it is our guiding
principle. A defining milestone in FY25 was the initiation of
our 3MW solar power project at our production facilities.
Once completed, this will offset nearly 40% of our total
energy requirements, lowering costs and significantly
reducing our carbon footprint.

At the same time, we invested in people, enhancing
employee welfare programs, training, and development
opportunities. This dual focus on environmental
stewardship and human capital development reflects our
belief that business growth must go hand-in-hand with
social responsibility.

Looking Ahead

As we step into the future, our focus will remain on:
utilizing our production capacities, expanding product
offerings, strengthening global reach, and embedding
sustainability in everything we do. By leveraging
technology, improving efficiencies, and nurturing talent,
we are confident of delivering sustainable and inclusive
growth for all stakeholders.

Gratitude

| would like to express my sincere appreciation to our
employees, who are the heartbeat of Big Bird Foods,
for their hard work and dedication. To our shareholders
and customers, | extend my gratitude for their continued
trust and support. With your confidence, we will continue
to build Big Bird Foods into a brand that is synonymous
with quality, trust, and innovation—both in Pakistan and
abroad.

Together, we move forward with optimism and
determination.

Sincerely,

—

Dr. Muhammad Mustafa Kamal
Chief Executive Officer




BBFL Annual Report 2025 19



DIRECTORS’
REPORT

The directors of your company are pleased to present the Annual Report with the audited financial statements of the
Company for the year ended June 30, 2025.

Financial performance at a Glance

A brief financial analysis is presented as under:

. PKR in “000” Inc/Dec
Operating Results
2025 2024

Sales 11,364,831 7,209,868 58%
Gross profit 2,381,906 1,587,535 50%
Profits from operations 1,906,567 1,189,523 60%
Profit before tax 1,563,021 841,597 86%
Profit after tax 1,166,598 838,209 39%
EPS - Basic (Rs.) 3.90 2.80 39%

Financial Highlights

For the year ended June 30, 2025, the company delivered a strong topline growth of 58%, with sales increasing to Rs.
11.36 billion from Rs. 7.21 billion, reflecting robust demand and market expansion. Gross profit grew by 50%, though
the margin slightly declined to 20.96% from 22.02%, indicating pressure from higher input costs. Operating profit
increased by 60% with a marginal improvement in operating margin to 16.8%, showing effective cost management.
Profit before tax surged by 86%, highlighting strong operational efficiency and improved financial discipline. However,
profit after tax grew only 39% due to a higher tax charge, which compressed the net margin from 11.6% to 10.3%.

Despite this, earnings per share improved from Rs. 2.8 to Rs. 3.90, a 39% increase, reflecting solid bottom-line
performance supported by topline growth.

The Company is committed to its vision of positively enhancing the quality of life of our consumers by expanding its
product base through continuous innovation and quality control.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Company operates in a dynamic environment where its poultry farming, slaughtering, processing, and supply
activities are exposed to a number of risks and uncertainties that may impact its performance and long-term
sustainability. Key risks include:

e  Poultry farming and poultry product prices fluctuate frequently, creating challenges in managing and adjusting
input costs. However, this also provides an opportunity to take advantage of low-price periods to reduce the cost
of raw materials.

e  Prices of maize, soybean meal, and other feed ingredients are subject to fluctuations in global and local commodity
markets, significantly impacting production costs.

e Company is subject to stringent food safety, halal certification, environmental, and labor regulations; non-
compliance could result in penalties or operational restrictions. We are managing it effectively by complying with
food safety standards and labor regulations.

e Extreme weather conditions, water scarcity, and environmental changes can adversely affect poultry farming
operations and productivity.

Business Performance Highlights

During the year ended June 30, 2025, the Company delivered strong operational and financial results, reflecting both
volume growth and improved market positioning. Revenue increased by 58% compared to the previous year, driven
by higher demand for processed poultry products and enhanced capacity utilization of our production facilities. The
Company continued to focus on operational efficiencies, quality assurance, and customer service, which contributed to
higher sales and improved profitability. Despite challenges in the rising input costs, BBFL maintained its competitiveness
through cost optimization, strategic sourcing and economies of scale. The management remains confident that the
solid business fundamentals and continued investment in processing capabilities and brand development will support
sustainable growth in the coming years.
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Occupational Safety and Health

At Big Bird Foods Limited, safety is our top priority, and we strive for Vision Zero — a workplace with zero injuries. We
remain committed to imparting a safety mindset through reinforced leadership messaging, responsible employee
behavior, safety focused plant designs, facilities, and products. This is in addition to the implementation of safe
procedures and systems throughout the year.

Our relentless pursuit of safety excellence has yielded remarkable results, and we remain committed to maintaining the
highest safety standards in all our operations.

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Company makes charitable donations of meat and funds to welfare and educational institutes, with its available
resources. We are committed to local sourcing and local employment at all our facilities - creating employment
opportunities.

Environmental Protection

Sustainability is at the core of our manufacturing strategy, and we are committed to the reduction of emissions in our
operations.

Throughout the past year, we undertook various environmental protection measures to conserve water, energy, and
reduce waste, including and looking for:

Wastewater is treated before being used for plantation, and is also recycled.

Offsetting the carbon impact of electricity by taking intiative of installing 3MW solar power system.

Reusing and recycling of waste materials generated from sites.

Around 17,000 plants have been cultivated on 20 acres of vacant land at the plant to help reduce the carbon
footprint

At Big Bird Foods Limited, one of our sustainability ambitions is to end plastic pollution through reduction, circulation
and collaboration.

These efforts to reduce the carbon footprint and reduce waste through circularity were achieved through a holistic
approach which ensures that sustainability is integrated across our operations.

Dividend
Considering the need to enhance capacity utilization, working capital requirement and the liquidity position, the Board
of Directors has decided not to declare dividend for the year ended June 30, 2025.

Financial Statements
The financial statements of the Company have been audited and approved by the auditors of the firm, Abdul Khalig &
Co. Chartered Accountants.

Statement on Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework
The management of Big Bird Foods Limited is committed to good corporate governance and complying with best
practices. As required under the Code of Corporate Governance, the Directors are pleased to state as follows:

e The financial statements prepared by the management of the Company present fairly the result of its operations,
cash flows and changes in equity.

e  Proper books of account have been maintained.

e  Appropriate accounting policies, as applicable in Pakistan, have been consistently applied in the preparation of the
financial statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgement.

e International Financial Reporting Standards have been followed in the preparation of the financial statements and
any departure from has been adequately disclosed.

e The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored.

e There are no significant doubts upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

e There has been no departure from the best practices of corporate governance, as detailed in the Rule Book of
the Stock Exchange.

BBFL Annual Report 2025 21
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e  Statements regarding the following are annexed or are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements:
- Number of meetings of Board of Directors and its committees held and attendance by directors.
- Key financial data for the last six years.
- Pattern of shareholding.

Composition of the Board

Category Names

Executive Directors Dr Muhammad Mustafa Kamal
e Mr. Salman Basit

Mr. Mohammad Ahmad Kamal

Mr. Abdul Basit (Chairman of the Board)
Dr Abdul Karim

Dr Muhammad Aleem

Mrs. Saadia Karim

Non-Executive Directors

Female Director

Mr. Maj. Gen (r) Asghar Ali
Mr. Muhammad Tabassum Munir
Mr. Tarig Hamid

Independent Directors

Audit Committee

¢ Mr. Tarig Hamid Chairman
e Mr. Abdul Basit Member
e Mr. Maj. Gen (r) Asghar Al Member
¢ Dr Muhammad Aleem Member
e Mrs. Saadia Karim Member

Human Resource & Remuneration committee of Board

e Mr. Muhammad Tabassum Munir  Chairman
¢ Dr. Muhammad Mustafa Kamal Member
e Dr. Abdul Karim Member
e Dr Muhammad Aleem Member
e Mr. Maj. Gen (r) Asghar Al Member
e Mr. Salman Basit Member

Directors’ Remuneration
The Board has approved a “Directors’ Remuneration Policy” for Directors and Senior Management, ensuring
transparency, regulatory compliance, and alignment with the Company’s objectives.

Auditors
The present External Auditors, Abdul Khalig & Co. Chartered Accountants, have completed the annual audit for the
year ended June 30, 2025, and issued a clean audit report. The auditors will retire on the conclusion of the Annual
General Meeting of the Company and, being eligible, have offered themselves for reappointment. As proposed by the
Audit Committee, the Board recommends their appointment as auditors of the Company for the year ending on June
30, 2026.

Subsequent Events
No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the company have occurred between the end
of financial year and the date of this report.

Acknowledgment

The Board of Directors would like to extend its heartfelt gratitude to all our stakeholders, including employees,
customers, suppliers, shareholders, and bankers, for their unwavering support. The confidence and goodwill of our
stakeholders have been instrumental in enabling the Company to sustain and grow over the years.
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On behalf of the entire Board, we sincerely acknowledge and deeply appreciate the CEO’s relentless efforts, visionary
leadership, and unwavering commitment, which have been pivotal in driving the sustained growth and success of the
Company.

We also recognize that the collective efforts and trust of our stakeholders have been key to our success, and we remain
committed to maintaining and strengthening these vital relationships. Our employees’ dedication, our customers’
loyalty, our suppliers’ reliability, our shareholders’ trust, and our bankers’ support have all played crucial roles in our
achievements.

As we look to the future, we continue to seek Allah’s blessings for the continued success and prosperity of the
Company. We remain dedicated not only to the benefit of all our stakeholders but also to the broader welfare of our
Country. We pray that our endeavors contribute positively to the economic and social fabric of the nation, fostering
growth and development for all.

Future Outlook

Big Bird Foods Limited (BBFL) has continued its journey of growth and transformation with a focus on operational
excellence, sustainability, and market expansion. The year marked the commissioning of a new production line in
the ethnic food segment, which has broadened the product portfolio and contributed positively to revenues. A key
milestone was the initiation of a 3MW solar power system at the plant, a project that not only targets annual savings
in energy costs but also significantly reduces the Company’s reliance on grid power. This investment will lower the
carbon footprint of operations by cutting emissions and ensuring greater energy security, aligning BBFL with global
environmental initiatives and sustainability standards. The project will be operational before the end of the second
quarter of 2026.

On the commercial side, BBFL strengthened its international footprint by entering into a strategic agreement with
Alibaba Group, giving the Company direct access to global B2B platforms and opening new doors in the international
poultry meat market. Financial resilience was also a focus during the year, with the Company successfully negotiating
favorable restructuring terms with a financial institution, while at the same time settling PKR 500 million of outstanding
bank liabilities in full.

Looking ahead, BBFL is well-positioned to capitalize on product innovation, renewable energy integration, and supply
chain efficiencies to deliver long-term sustainable growth. By combining financial discipline with environmentally

responsible initiatives and expanding its reach in both domestic and global markets, the Company remains committed
to creating lasting value for its shareholders and contributing positively to the broader food and poultry industry.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

S

CEO/Director

Lahore: September 27, 2025
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Board of Directors / Committees Meetings
Board of Directors Meeting

During the year 2025, seven Board Meetings were held. Attendance by each Director was as follow:

Directors Total No. of Meetings Held No. of Meetings Attended
Mr. Abdul Basit 7 6

Dr. Muhammad Mustafa Kamal
Dr. Abdul Karim

Dr. Muhammad Aleem

Mrs. Saadia Karim

Mr. Salman Basit

Mr. Mohammad Ahmad Kamal
Mr. Tarig Hamid

Mr. Muhammad Tabassum Munir
Mr. Maj. Gen. (r) Asghar Ali*

SRR NI ENEENEENEEN
violo oo | NN NN

*Maj. Gen. (r) Asghar Ali was elected on 28.10.2024. He attended two meetings and was granted leave of absence in
one meeting.

Audit Committee Meeting
Four meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the year. Attendance by each Member was as follows:

Members Total No. of Meetings Held No. of Meetings Attended
Mr. Tarig Hamid (Chairman) 4 4

Mr. Abdul Basit (Member)

Dr. Abdul Karim (Member)*

Dr. Muhammad Aleem (Member)

Mrs. Saadia Karim (Member)
Mr. Maj. Gen. (r) Asghar Ali (Member)*

I RS
N|[W|W|—=|Ww

*Dr. Abdul Karim was a member prior to the Elections held on 28.10.2024. After reconstitution of the Audit Committee,
he ceased to be a member.

*Maj. Gen. (R) Asghar Ali became a member of the Audit Committee on 29.10.2024.
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Human Resource & Remuneration Committee (HR&RC)
Three meetings of HR&R Committee were held. Attendance by each Member was as follow:

Members Total No. of Meetings Held No. of Meetings Attended

Mr. Muhammad Tabassum Munir (Chairman) 3

Dr. Muhammad Mustafa Kamal (Member)
Mr. Abdul Basit (Member)*

Dr. Abdul Karim (Member)

Dr. Muhammad Aleem (Member)

Mr. Salman Basit (Member)
Mr. Maj. Gen. (r) Asghar Ali (Member)*

WD W | W|W| W|Ww|w
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*Mr. Abdul Basit was a member prior to the Elections held on 28.10.2024. After reconstitution of the HR&R Committee,
he ceased to be a member.

*Maj. Gen. () Asghar Ali became the member of HR&R Committee in 29.10.2024.

Terms of Reference of Audit Committee and HR&R Committee
The Committees have been constituted by the Board in compliance with relevant laws.

The Audit Committee oversees the Internal Audit function, and also reviews audit plans and reports. The Committee
conducts its meetings as and when required. The Committee appraises the Board about the significant discussions
and decisions at its meetings and recommendations in respect of Company’s operations and financial results.

The HR&R Committee is responsible for reviewing and recommending to the Board matters relating to HR policies,

organizational structure, succession planning, and remuneration of senior management. The Committee also evaluates
and recommends to the Board the remuneration and benefits of the Chief Executive Officer and key executives.
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Performance indicators for 6 years

Operating and financial

trends

2025

2024

2023

2022

2021

2020

Rupees in ©000”

BALANCE SHEET

Non-current assets 7,712,624 | 7,601,156 | 7,108,458 | 7,411,609 | 7,724,426 | 3,529,472
Current assets 4,786,635 | 2,735,880 | 2,384,179 | 2,236,847 | 2,200,325 | 2,145,943
Share capital 2,989,058 | 2,989,058 | 2,970,930 | 2,970,930 | 2,100,000 | 2,100,000
Accumulated profits / reserves 2,171,717 919,201 | (1,883,946) | (1,902,792) | (1,748,696) (922,715)
Non-current liabilities 1,497,034 | 2,114,636 | 2,077,528 | 2,996,893 | 2,595,993 | 1,633,606
Current liabilities 3,141,298 | 2,881,048 | 2,905,639 | 2,009,375| 2,497,836 | 2,690,252
PROFIT OR LOSS

Sales 11,364,831 | 7,209,868 | 6,061,862 | 3,543,608 | 2,381,649 | 3,198,483
Gross profit 2,381,906 | 1,587,535 570,593 101,332 4,801 42,944
Other income 304,553 81,190 71,824 82,098 27,134 25,728
Profit/(Loss) before tax 1,563,021 841,597 | (154,572)| (382,665)| (534,110)| (829,770)
Profit/(Loss) after tax 1,166,598 838,209 | (116,979)| (303,048)| (828,418)| (588,617)
Total comprehensive income 1,164,206 837,506 (116,618) (297,531) | 2,875,405 (584,018)
EPS - Basic (Rs.) 3.90 2.80 (0.39) (1.02) (3.94) (2.80)

20 Big Bird Food Limited




ob| /(b
Ly iferl)

Lol S 83,88 Al 6

2021 2022 2023 2024 Sl Gildle sol Kikysl

uxe "000” oy
3529472 | 7,724,426 | 7411509 | 7108458 | 7,601,156 | 7,712,624 Sl s Jasb
2,145,943 | 2200325 | 2236847 | 2384179 | 2735880 | 4,786,635 Sl Sxe Jul8
2,100,000 | 2,100,000 | 2970,930 | 2970930 | 2,989,058 | 2,989,058 JeS 3o
(922,715) | (1,748,696) | (1,902,792) | (1,883946) | 919,201 | 2,171,717 5153 / zélia egane
1,633,606 | 2595993 | 2,996,893 | 2077,528 | 2,114,636 1,497,034 obls ~e3 Lixe Jssb
2,690,252 | 2,497,836 | 2,009,375 | 2905639 | 2,881,048 | 3,141,298 obls ned Iae Julb
oladi b polio
3198483 | 2,381,649 | 3,543,608 6,061,862 | 7,209,868 | 11,364,831 Cgy8 5l il
42,944 4801 | 101332 | 570593 | 1,587,535| 2,381,906 #3lio egane
25,728 27,134 82,098 71,824 81,190 | 304,553 el Ko
(829,770) | (534,110) | (382665) | (154572)| 841597 | 1,563,021  (plas) / mélio s cow puss
(588617) | (828418) | (303,048) | (116979) | 838209 | 1166598 (plais) / mélic a=s S (usss
(584,018) | 2875405 | (297,531) | (116,618) 837,506 | 1,164,206 el Hesana JS
(2.80) (3.94) (1.02) (0:39) 2.80 39| (bso ) ol — el 3 8l

BBFL Annual Report 2025 27




ob( /(2
L8 iy

2 | 4 | (69) ole sl (5l) iz sase iz
i) S Ol A%y S 98 JuSids S GEaaS BT g5 0S5 Ui w0 OLsl g Sy sd=ia oS 28.10.2024 0p,S)lauc 538150
LY >

it Sy S S G365 29.10.2024 Lle 2ol (355L)) Jri> 5200 O

(HR&RC) L 2eaS ~dglen sl J5lwg (ilusl

NS I ERUIWERY JW:1 A VPV STRN 'PIRV-LI P EX IRVE B U X 3 e BT P81

slami S S grepsdlal slass JS S pewdlal Iy Ser adwie

3 3 (Ox05882) saio puus 3amo wli>
2 3 (555) JboS Labuas somo 52515
! 3 (65)) bwlllye Gl>
2 3 (63)) puSlage ,i815
3 3 (65)) pde 3axa 42813
2 3 (05)) bwl plelw Ol
1 3 (65) Lle sol (355E0) Uriz s2ue li>

ol sy S 95 iS55 S 2uaS HRERC . g5 08y s o Slliaiil I sy sdeia o8 28.10.2024 buwldlae iz O
-8 i oSy S

et 053 S iaaS T Rl T gl 68 29.10.2024 Lle s2ol (355L0) Jxiz 52400

Lilyds S o> S 2enS 5 34l gl sol (Heas &3

o S 65 Sl Gee Juawi S blges s d e Li3b (S 359 OliseS

Coxd GhaaS o i 035l G S edioss sol Lsasain S 3T gl iy IS LK S A8 S ST gyl iraS &3
25U Gillo sol 3l S GigaS 5ol Geliaus ssl Cuz Ol mil Gao Lozl il GResS (1 L3S Admio pedlal il sy S5
-t GBS LS S D9 ae 2l S Olilin o s> S

590 Blrio cuo ndglro S Cuomise shisw sol (S0 nguain LS Lirdils (263 Hosdsi (sl HR oS HRERC
29l cdslzo S 5023801 (5aalS 5ol ruunsdl 923 iz GEenS -l ~03 S S Giliew gl i o33l> S Clole S
- GBS Ulaew oS 359 50l o i 035> L S A58

28  Big Bird Food Limited



ob| /(b
Ly iferl)

Ololsdl Aibls ~od Sldezlo oS s o @i Gildle - oae by a2l o S Sladl 03318 —w sl S ez I3l
3 538 Lsps o S o&idly awas iyl GigaS ( Sor Sk 95 il iyl s weelio Lalle sol GShe ol 1S So> gilw S
-2 p3es3 o S S LIS S pue Cumiio @uwy S Sxiey sol Shes ol xS

3250515 8T 359y Cilio

2853513/l (S1 s
2025 jniow 27 5o

ool S UssisaS [ 555855513 T 3509
oudlal S 5558513 T 3509
18 93 s (Sl S 520518 5y - Sy Admie pudlal Olw S 5599 ohes 52025 Jlw

3lass S $uil> pao pgdl]  slasi JS Sygwdl>l g Ssy sdrio

~

bollse oli>

JWeS Labas same 513
eSlae 513

ole oo )2S13

S NI%w ~oyie
bl plelw Ol

JeS s>l xomo wlis
o> Gilb ol

ole ol Gx5ly) Jriz s ©li>

N U1 N (N (NN O

NN Y NN N N NN

o0 ozl Sl gl GS S Bue el 95 S Ladl ey e 95 28.10.2024 Lle srol (355L) Jxiz s2ee O
-g7f5/L53 ;716-3 g>Sk5)-‘4’L>)'“c U—‘-(r’l

ootlal 1S L ieaS &S50
o8 oS s> Sx8l> S 0S5 51 -Ser pdlal e S GreeS BT gl S Jlw

3las S $38l> Gae ggaedlal Slasd JS LS pswdal Jly Sey Adnie
4 (Oseriez) o> Bolb ol

(69) bwldlsee Gls>
(635)) puSlage ,i815
(65)) pde 3axa ,IS13
(09)) EUS A=W ~ayixe

W w kL w s
ESNE NSNS

BBFL Annual Report 2025 29




ob /(2
L8 iy

2 S Uliw S 6385 S ol 3 asb S 03T LiweS & S
el lhad Ssle G5oS Sls xS 5lie 58 Cls e (S iueS Hlieys S B S Sgyy pel sol pliisl S Jlw Lo

“O8 D9 UxP L9

sSuas L bl

Cale> 330 558 S O 8 5 sol n ey e 553w ca8lo «s03dle Jsada 5)Mer Sateol plos iyl 5,285,313 3l 550y
S sai ol LigS) 5hx cw pollw oS LigaS LIy ol slaiel 18 5530y Sukuwl 2 slay .o SHSIol ApSd cw U5~ 0
2 GBS 13138 @il Gue Sl o8

9l 35S paluass oS pie J3liia 3uf ol wsli8 Siynay (odindoS K@il S CEO (o Js posls @y (B> S 3y0s alad
-2 LS 155158 @l Gao Sy ST 68 AlkolS sol (855 Juubiso S igaS 55 Loz 1war iabs

o0l or 2 38 S GilealS (Sslay slaiel Hol GrdndssS Lelaizl S 55Mer Suawl aslay A G S s Lot~ @
2lay (1389 LS Bedlo asley (X LS Breidle asley ow pies) I S Sl berdo sol igS) 518 oS Wlales @l o
-2 LS LI5S @l Gao usuleolS silay Loy o Cala> S 55Siw 2 slay sol ¢ iy 18 55 Mgy sids @ slay « slaiel 1S 555w
B~ @1 -0 Budb S Goiasy LS AUl I S Gldigs 5ol (lealS Juubawn S igaS 00 ( S iy By S Judiwo
les -omain oléeS a1 8 S 39u 9 738 53 Rewss S Sho gl Al Gy OldeS ) S e 3316 S 500y Skl plad iyl
owS Il lsS Cude I S 3 £059 95 9ai sol 8T S i « S SB Galews Hel Gdlre S pg8 GulidisS (Slay AS o

IS Gloasi sol G855 Sar xS 5950 283 5y @eewsd S CuSilo gl wolasdly (GSaae Jidunl o (BBFL) el 5365 35 X
Eygy ES303y 5 puz 1S Olegrd LS O3 HdSSas B Sl Bse il 398 Sgil S Jlw ol -2 LSy Sl shew Lyl
dgi LT 1S pllss S Sblgs aanads BMW o E63ly Juo K @l Sl - 315 > o un il sol LS @avsg oS 0408
82 95 slaxil oS iS5 59l 358 Sk o Bl Oy 95 iy A8l e Oilabal S SUlS (Byu0 A 92> mguaio Ll S
oS bl canl (0 2 S Ly iy o Cbsla> 05L5 S SSUls sol 5SS oS Zhal (IS mlesaws ~y - BxS 05 5 sob (Ll
2026 ~ygunio ~y -5 255 05 oS iy S198 5lS xS Kl @ g3l S Shlie S )lasl sl Slaladl Lildsslo Lelle
B Seord pls b o pliisl S Gilo s Sra093 S

Sorlh Suely B2B L alle 55558 1S5S bailn St Syl s oS s SLUASIE SN il 5yl
borin oS s (oledl Hu il 5S JoaS 2-5l9xd B Lae CaSHle Sun Sxdey Hole83 G yol 5S a3 iluy Sl ol S5
2 B3l S5l LS o5 el g3l S 2l Gildle SOl 5 GisaS 1 3530 S Aol ey S Gildle ples S Jle LS
LS st JoSo IS olzly Sin Ll 19y oslo 500 g3l (1 a3l sol (S il 9 cus8 il S alalS

ssl aladil S Gblgs 3axd a8 wiaz LS Olegian o S Gailsd S LB LIS Live Jasb BBFL (JSey —iny ST

30 Big Bird Food Limited



ab

bl plabw lix

ob| /(b
Ly iferl)

3280515 925350

(5590 Ol Hunriez) bwldlae Oli>

eSllae 513

P.J.CM)KB

5013 285 o

b R B
205 il

e s2ol 355) Jri> sue oli>

o> GHlb ol

52280515 Hlasls sl

n
3
“

P

n
3
“

U‘ 3

T

oasaS &S]

> Glb Ol -

bollse Ol -

ol szl (5ly) siz sxee Oli> »
e xaxo 52813

S NARw Aoy

heaS adsle sol JSlws ilusl S 35ss
JeS Gébuas saxe ,iS15 -

oSl 5815 -

PRV

e szl (5ly) Jsiz sxee Oli> ©
bl plolw ol -

nglra 1S 5,585,515

WJraz5 $32osy wapdlads o> (g GShobiio “uadlly S Adslro S 55803137 S Caiamise sdisw sol 552805313 5 550

ot iy il o5 63y oo il S awlis S LigaS sl

skadl

JaSa &3 il S Jlo Jlg S pi> 652025 (o> 30 S5 udiigS1 5355 igaS Lol @Ilase 55057 J5iwsol 035250
el S Sisr Dl sel 5 Lslaor 5Ly 5y plics] S ale Godlal il S GigaS 530310 S Sl Eigyy ST ulS S 58
Jlo Jls Sey pi> 652026 (9> 30 3591 Balkae S 32035 S eaS B30 LS Ll 8 S (5055 03193 98 395 5 Lol

BBFL Annual Report 2025 31




ob( /(b
LY iferl)

Jaolo )3 S 5155 abais ol Sl oS g S inS o 95 ALisd 233 S RdoSren sol xS @S 95 iy Srgd o)l

-2 LSS bgyso 65 (5)lasfly bue sl plad asloy ~S o Sl sy 95 Ol ool 92 o G5 LS

1035943
Sl 5501 Sor igS) sBas 55 Dygrs S Sy oS sy XeSd sol Wyesd S JiewS KiSye iJlesivwl S Cusdo
2 WS Aliagd 1S xS ~5 odlel 8 3585005 ) S Jlo g Sisy @i 65 2025 (o> 30 5 558,503

2 slodssl LIl
- 8> Gashiia S Ol sl LS &ST 5 GukiBiBST 535 LigeS Sl @Ilaue 53551 S 238 IS yoslodsd Lildle oS igaS

Olals Sio pusd Kiseys Sildle sol Euyyessls

ConlS ~S Luwx -0 pies) o S Juosd GS wodsb B sl ity ol CaionlS ezl ~ellisl S Miked 5358 35 K

IS On S Olo 3 ~Azmaie Gdied OS¢ i S Al abalis S GuiiyeS

oo GBSl selslp 3 ¢ @Sl Siidunl el oS el Wbl Gl 03,5l w0 Bib S Aol S LigaS ©
S LS nlbyyseb ~ilauaio oS Gossas

-on 8 Sl e sob s JSIL Ola ~ileS S GigeS ©

Ol ~igans S K51 ol o LS LS 683 gil S Jalind oS Gorandly K51 Celio pro Sl S Wllue Ll 0
B S L IR TS|

S ol i G GS Baxm WS Whlime S Kheyy Gildle eledl Ga 833 Lue HliwsSkose Sl S Wbl Lo 0
- 2 B LS Calisg el BLESILGgiee IS il e

-2 b sl Jal3SL 5y seb 180 sol o pSiews allilS Jos2iS L5y 0

08 O Olds 9 SeSd 583 8 IS 5y Camdo S Saqules ulos S iseS 0
o0 Bhil 5eS cw Usdnb i 5 LuiineS EasonlS (Bilhie S Juads I8 85 bee 3 Joy S izl SLiwl
2 LS

fon 8 IS b e 0eSei S asledel Lo b Shewin Sbily Gae 20b S L3 zo3 0

(S0l LS5E013 ol slass S Gewdlsl sadmin S GoskiaS LS Ll ysl 522805513 8T 3501 ©

Hladgslael Gildle s3ulS S pollw g2 A58 0

~igai S Kilgy 45 0

32 Big Bird Food Limited



ob( /(b
LY iferl)

0o 2B S Juawi pac .o @b S hulgd S (539550 5ol (Gildomle WirduSubidiw JM> (aiw 398 S igaS -
ool Sor xS Jsewi S buleus S (539330 9l Bhlima S Cbla> S Shos o1 -0 GiSeo K pbainly Jidonl b Sl
ot o S plbsl o b 356 1S

Tob 6x 88 Cumdlo lgla sol UsoelS S Kinyls 5xHoy LLbas Gildomle sal (onS LS b Wl Gawwge SSll -
o8 S S yilie

olsSle> S 358518 (ssbasls

Lol ao e 52 (S mibd L5 Gildle sol Jidunl bosdn 5 igaS whos 5 Jlo Jls Ser @i 85 2025 (s> 30
S L doy ~8LSl 3uas8 58 e el Bee blie S Jlw ~LiS .Ha SxS HelSe LS Ueies Kiidniey EuS)le i ol
S ieS - ALl o LS slasiwl S Oldgw Silslag Solos sol cdbb 03L5 LS Oilegian (3o 638 Hurwosy ~>9
L na> Gao @8l sz sol 3938 6315 5 Guz (565) 38530 A2 05 3y g salewsS yol pubradnl GHlES Wasl8l Jidy syl
S vsiduzo S Slog sol Kiwygw Sadpiul slol (S <83 S BBFL ws29l S iliz oue <83 Eg ol Giar i
9l usieNes S Kiwrwgyy sol Jowol S3liiy S 5LoslS Bused ~S 1 iy o5 ~sallasil gS) 518y oS Cudylano iyl =003
-G5S 258 Cales S LB LISk Lee Lslle Jls ST S nlasews Jralinn o BT LS Biln

s sl Cablis nilyg ddigy

20 035 ol "> S plS SOl = G OldsS S 0505 09 @109l i gz Oalal Soley B iue Riked 5398 55 K
Slegian sl Oldgw 5133 oS Eodly Liso sy Cble> g s aod S Huaidle (il plig S ©ald boudo o -us:
-t o9dle S 3La5 S allas 5ol 518 Adsb Bodno (o 58 Jlw ~n -0w piess o oS SsS mbd Cuind Gibles =3 S

Glel Oso sl ales il @159l ion a8 Juols 28l 583 I8 S st Sail Soloy S SRS i &S cbles
om piesy o S iS5 0b8x oS Oililime Hiblas (uy

Sols ~ed alow CoyeuslS
plad Gigl @ - s Olihe Gl S 5308 5ol sl oS Laslsl adds sol M8 il S PBlwy Oliws iyl HigaS
- om e o SIS @lse SHB50) -5 B30y elie sol Kiwygus olio sy Oldgw

Baxi Gilds>le

08 P33 ot S S S e 05 S Zh3l Gue ueelS il sl i 350 S Llae Chass KiaxSidsie Solar oSl
Sloladl alize S Lasd Gildesle o S xS 05 oS ALad ygl cbaxd S bles oS3k S o1 obes S Jlo Sl oz
-2 Bl LS Gy JSlos (55 ol gl Bloo Ly oo 35S Jlamiaol o S99y 85 il 28

L5 @ 68 Sl 5518 S Gy 2558 (i pllss 1S 3UlgS (eunas MW

CEilS il 55 sl Jlasiaal oylies 1S slen Juols g Jigy lagy oo utilos

cost 8 S ulS @393 17,000 L 3 a0 I 301 20 (uo sy o S 330 (uo 35S 05 85 Eiigy igd LS

oS Gl S Sty 203 S Hol=5 ol GaddoSin (oS Sl ao o ESlic S (51l aslay wao 32ea) 5308 55 K

BBFL Annual Report 2025 33




ob|( /(b
Ly iferl)

olsay S Uosladel Slle xds ST S LigaS o S Jlo o Jlo S i 95 2025 (o> 30 5,280,515 S LigaS S
cott S LBl S Gdied> Ser S L Eiygyy Aidl

S Ll
i LWL e Uod > i Sldle suaiixe
u“000” 39,2024 ux“000” 23952025
58% 7,209,868 11,364,831 el
50% 1,587,535 2,381,906 &BLLA UV CUY
60% 1,189,523 1,906,567 &_qb.a cmj.i.i:.)):vj
86% 841,597 1,563,021 (Q__Ql.m it o a5
39% 838,209 1,166,598 &_‘)Lm A S puSS
39% 2.8 3.9 (U-‘-" dg)) 6_5[51.3 - uu.)J [« 6|
olesde> il

721 G0 2025 Lisel S Lz 1S ulsd BT bosda S 58% I isaS o) oS Jlo Jlo Jisy o> 5 2025 s> 30
&8l egano (o GBS GealSe LS gewel S EuSHlo sl calb bardo 92 ¢ LIS i <5 9) w0l 11.36 58 25 —w ol
2l oS 8Ly S B g ol 03l 9> (1 1S 91 20.96% 53 5y 05 ol w0 22.02% G2ole A3l dgy A8LSI S 50% Lo
S50 S 8 o2 S 01 16.8% gl S i Isase rmsle Sl oo loy ~3LS1 609 (re @dlin Kitil .y S
9 pbi Gille si sol SRS Jidiunl bords 92 oy A8LSI 31048 86 o g8lio L o uSsS - xS 1l oS pllail
0> 5 Gux doy A8Lsl 3iaud 39 ayo e @8lie GuSS Sl A=y w29 GS oy LSS 030 (b .o xS Bbles oS baws
b35S 3046 103 S 5S 05 o 2ayd 11.6 65 o2lo

00888 w0 Culas> LS 93 O3 Il 8Ll 39% (e sk S5 3953.90 58 b5y cw 2.8 Lisel pawas LB 3929L S ol
a2 oBS GelSe S LIRSS S O3 B

o S idilo il 5S 25 Cuzang oS bty S Oleghan iyl c=3 S JoxiiS GAlsS Hsl Sibb Gax Juiliis igaS
o p333 o S OFe il S Sy sy seb Cude oS LSS5

Iy sy st g9l Slihs ol
oleasrw S Gilew ol 1 Kigsy (xS gud 1 Kiold $x80y S vl Ll 2 GIS pS Lse Jszlo Sixio Sl igoS
0 S 58 Silia oS Sl Lixe asb sl Z3SH8 LS Bal o> Lar 1295 s S Ly st sol Db _w Cun

ot Jolds o Slibas ol

Cuintwx Sl ol plasl S 83 Eg ol o Guz o BT Sz 51 ST Gae siesd S Olegian $xHgy sel Kinyld (5xilsy »
@b Gy @890 IS Silabl 03518 s slesl S a8 0 o S xS 05 98 Cuaud S Jlo pls @il o Sor lag sxnile Gae
s

ouz onr @0 S5z SU1 Gue Lealie S pulizl Gelde sl Gelle putasd (Sebizl 348 4% 5ol (ileS s bgws (S0 »
-t s il s sb Glles <83 (Slglagy

34 Big Bird Food Limited



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF BIG BIRD FOODS LIMITED

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Big Bird Foods Limited (the Company) for
the year ended June 30, 2025 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our
responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s compliance with
the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of
the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various documents
prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements, we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and
internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to
consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an
opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit
Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions. We are
only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party
transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance

does not appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained in
the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30, 2025.

(;/f;

Chartered Accountants
Place: Lahore

Date: September 27, 2025
UDIN: CR202510293pvk9eN80F
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

WITH LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REGULATIONS, 2019)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

The company has complied with the requirements of
the Regulations in the following manner:

1.The total number of directors are ten (10) as per the
following:

a)Male: Nine (9)
b)Female: One (1)

2.The composition of the Board is as follows:
i. Independent directors

1.Mr. Maj. Gen (r) Asghar Ali
2.Mr. Muhammad Tabassum Munir
3.Mr. Tarig Hamid

The company did not round up the number of independent
directors as the company is confident that the 3
independent directors, fulfill the required competencies
and offer a diverse and complete skill set of knowledge
and experience to discharge their duties competently, as
per applicable law and regulation.

ii.Non-executive directors

1.Dr. Abdul Karim

2.Dr. Muhammad Aleem
3.Mr. Abdul Basit
4.Mrs. Saadia Karim

iii.Executive directors

1.Dr. Muhammad Mustafa Kamal
2.Mr. Mohammad Ahmad Kamal
3.Mr. Salman Basit

iv.Female director
1.Mrs. Saadia Karim

3.The directors have confirmed that none of them is
serving as a director on more than seven listed companies,
including this company.

4.The company has prepared a code of conduct and
has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to
disseminate it throughout the company along with its
supporting policies and procedures.

5.The Board has developed a vision/mission statement,
overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the
company. The Board has ensured that complete record of
particulars of the significant policies along with their date
of approval or updating is maintained by the company.

6.All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised
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and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by
the Board/shareholders as empowered by the relevant
provisions of the Act and these Regulations.

7.The meetings of the Board were presided over by the
Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by
the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with
the requirements of the Act and the Regulations with
respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of
meeting of the Board.

8.The Board has a formal policy and transparent
procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance
with the Act and these Regulations.

9.0ut of ten, seven directors have obtained the Directors’
Training Program certification in current and previous
years; whereas the directors training program for the
remaining three directors will be completed in next
financial year.

10.The Board has approved appointment of chief financial
officer, company secretary and head of internal audit,
including their remuneration and terms and conditions of
employment and complied with relevant requirements of
the Regulations.

11.Chief financial officer and chief executive officer duly
endorsed the financial statements before approval of the
Board.

12.The Board has formed committees comprising of
members given below:

a) Audit Committee

i.Mr. Tarig Hamid (Chairman)
ii.Mr. Abdul Basit (Member)
iii.Mr. Maj. Gen (r) Asghar Al (Member)
iv.Dr. Muhammad Aleem (Member)
v.Mrs. Saadia Karim (Member)

b) Human Resource and Remuneration Committee
i.Mr. Muhammad Tabassum Munir ~ (Chairman)

ii.Mr. Muhammad Mustafa Kamal (

iii.Mr. Maj. Gen (r) Asghar Al (

iv.Dr Abdul Karim (Member)
v.Dr. Muhammad Aleem (

Vi.Mr. Salman Basit (

13.The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees
have been formed, documented and advised to the
committee for compliance.

14.The frequency of the committees’ meetings were as
per following:

a) Audit Committee — Four quarterly meetings during the



STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

WITH LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REGULATIONS, 2019)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

financial year.
b) HR and Remuneration Committee — Three meetings
during the financial year.

15.The Board has set up an effective internal audit function
who are considered suitably qualified and experienced
for the purpose and are conversant with policies and
procedures of the company.

16.The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed
that they have been given a satisfactory rating under
the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered with
Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their
partners are in compliance with International Federation
of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as
adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan and that they and the partners of the firm involved
in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent,

dependent and non-dependent children) of the chief
executive officer, chief financial officer, head of internal
audit, company secretary or director of the company.

17.The statutory auditors or the persons associated with
them have not been appointed to provide other services
except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or
any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have
confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this
regard.

18.We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6,
7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have been
complied with.

19.Explanation for non-compliance with requirements,
other than regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 are
below;

SR
NO.

1 Role of board and its members to
address Sustainability Risks and
Opportunities

As per the addition of clause 10A
in COCG by SECP, the board is
responsible for governance and
oversight of sustainability risks and
opportunities, within the company by
setting the company’s sustainability
strategies, priorities and targets to
create long term corporate value.

REQUIREMENTS

EXPLANATION

Currently, the management is assessing these
amendments and compliance thereof. The audit
Committee was apprised of the applicability of
the Sustainability disclosures standards on the
company during the year. The requirements
introduced by SECP will be complied with in
due course.

REGULATION
NO.

10A

2 Directors’ Training Program

All companies shall make appropriate
arrangements to carry out Directors’
Training Program to acquaint them with
these Regulations.

7 out of 10 directors have completed the
required Directors’ Training Program in current
and previous years. The training program will
be arranged for the following 3 directors in next
financial year.

-Dr Abdul Karim
-Dr. Muhammad Aleem
-Mrs. Sadia Karim

18

S Nomination Committee

The Board may constitute a separate
committee, designated as the
nomination committee, of such number
and class of directors, as it may deem
appropriate in its circumstances.

The board has not constituted a separate
nomination committee as the functions are
being performed by Human Resource and
Remuneration Committee. Therefore, separate
formation of this committee is not required,
nor is the establishment of the committee
mandatory.

29
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WITH LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REGULATIONS, 2019)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

SR
NO.

4 Risk Management Committee

The Board may constitute the risk
management committee, of such
number and class of directors, as it may
deem appropriate in its circumstances,
to carry out a review of effectiveness
of risk management procedures and
present a report to the Board

REQUIREMENTS

EXPLANATION

The Board has not constituted a separate Risk
Management Committee as the responsibilities
typically assigned to the Risk Management
Committee are being effectively discharged
by the Company’s Audit Committee therefore,
formation of this committee is not necessary,
nor its establishment mandatory.

REGULATION
NO.

30(1)

5 Disclosure of significant policies on
website

The company may disclose key
elements of the significant policies on
the website.

The requirement of disclosure of significant
policies is non-mandatory therefore the company
has disclosed limited information regarding this.
However, the company is considering placing
the key policies on the website.

35(1)

T

Mr. Abdul Basit
Chairman
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF BIG BIRD FOODS LIMITED
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Big Bird Foods Limited (the Company), which comprise the
statement of financial position as at June 30, 2025, and the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including material accounting policy information and other explanatory information, and we state
that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement of
financial position, statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in
equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of
2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at
June 30, 2025 and of the profit and other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
Following are the key audit matters:

S. No

Key Audit Matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit

M

Revenue recognition
Refer to note 27 to the annexed financial statements.

Revenue is a significant area in the financial
statements and has increased by 58% year on
year. The company’s sales comprise of the sale of
processed foods, poultry meat and is recognized
at point of time on satisfaction of performance
obligation by transfer of goods to customers.

We considered revenue recognition as a key audit
matter due to substantial growth and significant
inherent risks associated with the area.

Our audit procedures, amongst others, included the

following:

e Evaluated the accounting policy with respect to
revenue recognition.

e Performed test of details on selected samples
of invoices and obtained underlying documents
including sales orders and dispatch notes to
ensure occurrence.

e Performed cut-off procedures on selected
samples to ensure the revenue is recognized in
the correct period.

e  Performed analytical procedure on increase in
revenue by accessing the variance in approved
selling prices and evaluating the corresponding
increase in plant capacity utilization.

e Ensured the approval of rate list by appropriate
authority.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF BIG BIRD FOODS LIMITED
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Key Audit Matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit

e Assessed the adequacy of disclosures made
in the financial statements related to revenue in
accordance with the applicable accounting and
reporting standards.

(i)

Stock in trade
Refer to note 8 to the annexed financial statements.

As at June 30, 2025, the Company’s stock
represented a significant proportion of its total
assets.

Given the complexity associated with the multiple
stages of production and distribution, the verification
of valuation and existence of inventory quantity was
critical area, requiring significant audit attention.

Our audit procedures, amongst others, included the

following:

e Observed physical stock count and verified
the valuation sheet against the physical stock
sheets to ensure all items were recorded.

e \Verified on sample basis, purchases of specific
items and obtained the underlying supporting
documents i.e. Goods receipt notes.

e Compared the net realizable value, on a sample
basis, to the cost of finished goods and raw
material to access whether any adjustment in
stock is required to value stocks in accordance
with applicable accounting and reporting
standards.

e Assessed the effectiveness of the company’s
internal controls over inventory management at
different production stages.

e Assessed the adequacy of disclosures made
in the financial statements related to stock in
accordance with the applicable accounting and
reporting standards and Companies Act, 2017.

(i)

Gain on restructuring
Refer to note 32 to the annexed financial statements.

During the year, the company restructured financial
liability from a banking institution. As part of the
restructuring, revised repayment terms were agreed
and a gain on restructuring of a financial liability was
recorded.

Due to the complexity of calculations involved in
measuring the restructuring gain and the significant
judgment required in assessing whether the revised
terms resulted in a substantial modification and
derecognition of the original liability, therefore, this
area required significant auditor attention.

Our audit procedures, amongst others, included the

following:

e  Obtained the revised offer letter from the bank
and reviewed the revised terms of payments
and related covenants..

e Assessed the management’s analysis of
whether the restructuring constituted a
substantial modification requiring derecognition
under IFRS-9.

*  Re-performed the management’s calculations of
the present value of modified cash flows, using
the original effective interest rate, to evaluate the
accuracy of the restructuring gain recognized.

e Tested the accuracy of key inputs, including
outstanding principal, deferred markup, revised
repayment schedule, and discount rates.

e Evaluating the adequacy of disclosures in
the financial statements in accordance with
applicable accounting and reporting standards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF BIG BIRD FOODS LIMITED
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Key Audit Matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit

(v)

Related party transactions

Refer to note 42 to the annexed financial statements.
The Company has entered into various transactions
with related parties during the year.

Related party transactions accounted for 25.7% of
the Company’s total purchases and are significant to
the financial statements, as they are conducted with
parties under common control or influence and may
not always be on an arm’s length basis. Given the
potential risk of material misstatement arising from
their nature, their magnitude, and the requirement for
transparent disclosure under IAS 24 — Related Party
Disclosures, we identified related party transactions

Our audit procedures, amongst others, included the

following:

e Obtained an understanding of the Company’s
processes and controls over the identification,
approval, and recording of related party
transactions.

e Tested a sample of transactions with related
parties to supporting documents such as
invoices, contracts, and confirmations.

e Assessing whether the terms of related party
transactions were consistent with those
available to independent third parties (arm’s
length).

e Reviewing the minutes of meetings to ensure

as a key audit matter. that significant related party transactions
were appropriately approved by the Board of
Directors.

e FEvaluating the adequacy of disclosures in
the financial statements in accordance with
applicable accounting and reporting standards.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s reports thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
s0, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX
of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF BIG BIRD FOODS LIMITED
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn
up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and
returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the
Company’s business; and

d) no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report is Mr. Abdul Khaliq.

[;/'f;

Chartered Accountants
Place: Lahore

Date: September 27, 2025
UDIN:AR202510293FxITWfvyw
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STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

As at June 30, 2025

2025 2024
Note  —--------- Rupees----------
ASSETS
Non Current Assets
Property, plant and equipments 4 7,701,451,739 || 7,581,733,297
Long term loans and advances 5 756,233 636,000
Long term deposits and prepayments 6 10,416,400 18,786,208
7,712,624,372 7,601,155,505
Current Assets
Stores and spares 7 288,993,277 261,907,586
Stock in trade 8 1,913,390,418 || 1,275,198,398
Biological assets 9 254,754,956 -
Trade debts 10 1,957,175,823 || 1,003,306,138
Loans and advances 11 36,705,549 14,742,532
Deposits and prepayments 12 8,936,381 17,052,709
Short-term investment 13 - 6,230,575
Cash and bank balances 14 326,678,557 157,442 171
4,786,634,962 2,735,380,109
TOTAL ASSETS 12,499.259.334 10,337.035,615
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share Capital and Reserves
Share capital 15 2,989,057,860 || 2,989,057,860
Accumulated profit 2,115,521,006 863,004,324
Merger Reserve 16 56,196,390 56,196,390
Surplus on revaluation of operating fixed assets 17 1,344,783,148 || 1,433,093,840
Loan from director - related party 18 1,355,368,961 -
Total equity 7,860,927,365 5,341,352,414
Non Current Liabilities
Long term finances - secured 19 643,425,024 798,506,635
Deferred markup 20 206,133,033 690,347,768
Deferred taxation-net 21 491,744,008 503,450,223
Employee's benefit obligation 22 155,732,118 122,331,005
1,497,034,183 2,114,635,630
Current Liabilities
Current portion of long term financing 19 999,233,157 || 1,317,507,615
Short term borrowings 23 189,249,213 189,249,213
Trade and other payables 24 1,002,970,287 836,718,481
Accrued and deferred mark-up 25 949,845,130 537,572,263
3,141,297,786 2,881,047,572
Contingencies and commitments 26 - -

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

12.499,259,334

The annexed notes from 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.

G M

&
v/

Muhammad Ali Ahsen
Chief Financial Officer

Muhammad Mustafa Kamal
CEO/Director
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Chairman/Director
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STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS

For the year ended June 30, 2025

2025 2024

Note ~ --------e- Rupees----------
Sales - net 27  11,364,831,289 7,209,867,910
Cost of sales 28  (8,982,924,973) (5,622,332,963)
Gross Profit 2,381,906,316 1,587,534,947
Distribution and selling expenses 29 (373,690,349) || (204,784,390)
Administration expenses 30 (237,859,331) || (151,856,186)
Other expenses 31 (168,341,680) || (122,561,357)
(779,891,360) (479,201,933)
1,602,014,957 1,108,333,014
Other income 32 304,552,576 81,189,711
Profit from operations 1,906,567,533 1,189,522,726
Finance cost 33 (343,546,936) (344,146,490)
Profit before levies and income tax 1,563,020,596 845,376,235
Levies 34 - (8,778,958)
Profit before income tax 1,563,020,596 841,597,277
Taxation 35 (396,422,746) (3,388,538)
Profit after taxation 1,166,597,850 838,208,739
Profit after taxation 38 3.90 2.80

The annexed notes from 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Muhammad Ali Ahsen Muhammad Mustafa Kamal Abdul Basit Abdul Karim
Chief Financial Officer CEO/Director Chairman/Director Director
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STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended June 30, 2025

2025 2024
—————————— Rupees----------

Profit after taxation for the year 1,166,597,850 838,208,739
Other Comprehensive Income for the year
ltems that will not be reclassified subsequently to the statement of
profit or loss:
Remeasurements of defined benefit plan - net of tax (2,391,861) (703,000)
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,164,205,990 837,505,739

The annexed notes from 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Muhammad Ali Ahsen Muhammad Mustafa Kamal Abdul Basit Abdul Karim
Chief Financial Officer CEO/Director Chairman/Director Director
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STATEMENT

OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended June 30, 2025

Balance as at July 01,2023

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive loss

Total comprehensive income
Incremental depreciation - net of tax

Surplus transferred to retained
earnings on disposal of property
plant and equipment

Transfer of accumulated losses
under merger scheme

Merger reserves under merger
scheme

Set off of accumulated losses
against surplus under the merger
scheme.

Transactions with owners:

Share capital issued

Balance as on June, 30 2024

Balance as at July 01,2024

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive loss

Total comprehensive Income
Incremental depreciation - net of tax

Directorsloan - net

Balance as at June 30,2025

Capital Reserves HETENE
reserves
Share capital
Merger Revaluation N , Accumulated
Directors’ loan "
Reserves surplus profit
Rupees

2,970930,000 - 3422,486,307 - (1,883,945,996) 4,509,470,311
- - - - 838,208,739 838,208,739
- - - - (703,000) (703,000)
- - - 837,505,739 837,505,739
- - (91,561111) - 91561111 -
- - (5600,000) - 5,600,000 -
- - - - (79.947,886) (79,947,886)
- 56,196,390 - - - 56,196,390
- - (1,892,231,356) - 1892,231,356 -
- 56,196,390 (1,989,392,467) - 1909444581 (23,751,496)
18,127,860 - - - - 18127860
18,127,860 - - - - 18127.860
2,989,057,860 56,196,390 1433,093,840 - 863,004,324 5341352414
2,989,057,860 56,196,390  1,433,093,840 - 863,004,324 5,341,352,414
- - - - 1,166,597,850 1,166,597,850
- - - - (2,391,861) (2,391,861)
- - - - 1,164,205,990 1,164,205,990
- - (88,310,692) - 88,310,692 -
- - - 1,355,368,961 - 1,355,368,961
- - (88,310,692) 1,355,368,961 88,310,692 1,355,368,961
2,989,057,860 56,196,390 1,344,783,148 1,355,368,961 2,115,521,006 7,860,927,365

The annexed notes from 1to 47 form anintegral part of these financial statements.

@Ny S — S Mae—

Muhammad Mustafa Kamal
CEO/Director

Muhammad Ali Ahsen
Chief Financial Officer

Abdul Basit

Chairman/Director
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STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended June 30, 2025

2025 2024
Note =~ -----ooe- Rupees----------

Cash flow from operating activities

Cash flows from operations 36 198,283,331 1,200,590,596
Net increase in long term loans to employees (120,233) (52,000)
Net decrease in long term deposits and prepayments 8,369,808 10,212,500
Finance cost paid (12,156,732) (79,239,730)
Gratuity paid (9,586,837) (6,160,977)
Workers' profit participation fund paid (45,401,516) -
Income tax and levies paid (360,078,368) (71,455,407)

Net cash generated from / (used) in operating activities (220,690,546) 1,053,894,981

Cash flow from investing activities

Additions to property, plant and equipment including capital

work in progress (349,793,131) || (718,213,824)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 23,975,000 27,400,000
Interest received on short term investment 6,556,665 11,741,826

Net cash used in investing activities

(319,261,466)

(679,071,998)

Cash flow from financing activities

Loan from directors - receipts 1,490,634,971 -
Loan from directors - repayments (135,266,010) -

Long term financing - repayments (652,380,562) || (223,279,856

)
Short term financing - net - (61,279,161)
)

Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities 702,988,399 (284,559,017
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 163,036,386 90,263,966
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 163,642,171 73,378,205
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 36.1 326,678,557 163,642,171

The annexed notes from 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Muhammad Ali Ahsen Muhammad Mustafa Kamal Abdul Basit Abdul Karim
Chief Financial Officer CEO/Director Chairman/Director Director
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NOTES TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended June 30, 2025

1. LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS

1.1 M/s Big Bird Foods Limited was incorporated on September 21, 2011 in Pakistan as a
Private Limited Company under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (repealed with enactment
of The Companies Act, 2017). The company subsequently was converted into public
unlisted company by way of reverse merger on June 01, 2023 and further converted into
public listed company upon its listing on Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX) in August 05,
2024. The principal activities are poultry farming, slaughtering, processing and supply of
finished & semi finished poultry products.

The geographical location and address of the company’s business place and plant is as
under;

- The company’s registered office is situated at 2-A, Ahmad Block, New Garden Town
Lahore.

- The company’s manufacturing facilities are located at 63 Km Multan Road, Lahore.

Further, the Company’s outlets are situated in Rawalpindi, Multan, Lahore and Karachi.
2. BASIS FOR PREPARATION
21 Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards
applicable in Pakistan comprise of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS
Standards) issued by the International Accounting Standard Board (IASB) as notified under
the Companies Act, 2017 and provisions of and directives issued under the Companies
Act, 2017. Where provisions and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ
from the IFRS Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies
Act, 2017 have been followed.

2.2 Basis of measurement and preparation

These financial statements have been prepared under historical cost convention,
except as disclosed in policies.

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupee (PKR) that is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency. Amounts presented in Pakistan rupee have been
rounded off to nearest rupee, unless otherwise stated.

24 Use of estimates and judgments

In preparing these financial statements, the management has made judgments, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of company’s accounting policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these
estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to estimates are recognized prospectively.

BBFL Annual Report 2025 49




NOTES TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended June 30, 2025

2.41

2.4.2

2.4.3

2.4.4

2.4.5

Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have significant
effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements are discussed in the ensuing
paragraphs.

Property, plant and equipment

The Company reviews the residual values and useful life of property, plant and equipment
on regular basis. Further where applicable, an estimate of recoverable amount of assets is
made for possible impairment on an annual basis. Any change in such estimates in future
years might affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of property, plant and
equipment with corresponding effect on the depreciation charge, impairment and related
deferred tax liability.

Provision for inventory obsolescence

The Company reviews the net realizable value of stock in trade, stores, spare parts and
loose tools to assess any diminution in the respective carrying values. Net realizable value
is determined with reference to estimated selling price less estimated cost to complete
and estimated cost to make the sales.

Allowance for expected credit losses

The allowance for expected credit losses assessment requires a degree of estimation and
judgement. It is based on the lifetime expected credit loss.

Taxation

The Company takes into account the current income tax laws and decisions taken by
the taxation authorities. Instances where the Company’s view differs from the income tax
department at the assessment stage and where the Company considers that its view on
items of material nature is in accordance with law, the amounts are shown as contingent
liabilities.

Provisions and contingencies

A provision is recognized, as a result of past event, the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined
by discounting the expected future cash flows at pre-tax rate that reflects the current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the liability. The
un-winding or discount is recognized as finance cost, if any.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation can not be measured with
sufficient reliability, it is disclosed as contingent liability.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended June 30, 2025

2.4.6

2.4.6.1

2.4.6.2

2.5

2.5.1

2.5.2

2.5.3

Impairment
Impairment of financial assets

The Company measures Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) on financial assets measured at
amortized cost after considering the pattern of receipts from and future financial outlook
of the counterparty and is reviewed by the management on regular basis. Any change in
the estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of
assets with a corresponding effect on the profit or loss.

Impairment of non financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s assets are reviewed at each balance sheet
date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment loss. If such indication
exists, recoverable amount is estimated using criteria given in respective accounting
standards to determine the extent of impairment loss, if any.

New standards and amendments to published accounting and reporting standards
that are not yet effective and not early adopted by the Company

There are certain new standards and amendments that will be applicable to the Company
for its annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2024, However, these do not have any
significant impact on the Company’s financial statements except as disclosed in note 3 to
these financial statements.

Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective
and have not been early adopted by the Company
Effective date (annual
reporting periods
beginning on or after

IAS 21 The effects of changes in Foreign Exchange Rates 1 January 2025

(Ammendments)
IFRS 7  Financial Instruments: Disclosures (Amendments) 1 January 2026
IFRS 9  Financial Instruments: Classification and

measurement (Amendments) 1 January 2026
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2026

Annual Imporvements to IFRS 7, IFRS 9, IFRS 10 (Consolidated 1 January 2026
Financial Statements) and IAS 7 (Statement of Cashflows) Y
The above standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations
are not likely to have any material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

Other than the aforesaid standards, interpretations and amendments, International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) has also issued the following standards and
interpretation, which have not been notified locally by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP) as at 30 June 2025;

IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangement

IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosures in Financial Statements

IFRS 19  Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures
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NOTES TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended June 30, 2025

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

3.1 The accounting policies used in the preparation of these financial statements are the same
as those applied in the preparation of the financial statements of the Company for the year
ended June 30, 2024.

3.2 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment except for freehold land, capital work in progress are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Freehold land
and capital work in progress are stated at cost less allowance for impairment, if any.
Cost of property, plant and equipment includes acquisition cost, borrowing cost during
construction phase of relevant asset and other directly attributable costs including trial run
production expenses (net of income, if any). Transfers from capital work in progress are
made to the relevant category of property, plant and equipment as and when the assets
are available for use in the manner intended by the company’s management.

Surplus arising on revaluation of property, plant and equipment is recognized, net of tax, in
statement of comprehensive income and accumulated in reserves in shareholders’ equity
and is shown in equity. Revaluation is carried out with sufficient regularity to ensure that the
carrying amounts of the assets does not differ materially from the fair value. Accumulated
depreciation at the date of revaluation is not eliminated against the cost of the asset.
The surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment to the extent of incremental
depreciation charged on the related property, plant and equipment during the year is
transferred by the company to its unappropriated profit and is presented in statement of
changes in equity.

Depreciation is charged to income on the reducing balance method so as to write off the
depreciable amount of the property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives
at the rates specified in note 4. Depreciation on depreciable assets is commenced from
the date the asset is available for use up to the date, when the asset is disposed off.

The cost or replacing a major item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the
carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied
within the item will flow to the company and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced item is derecognized. The cost of the day to day servicing or
property, plant and equipment are recognized in profit or loss account as incurred.

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
by comparing the proceeds from disposals with the carrying amount of property, plant
and equipment and are recognized on net basis within “other income” in profit or loss
account.

3.3 Financial instruments

3.3.1 Financial assets
The Company classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost
or measured at fair value through profit or loss on the basis of both: - The entity’s business

model for managing the financial assets; and - The contractual cash flow characteristics of
the financial asset.

52  Big Bird Food Limited



NOTES TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended June 30, 2025

3.3.2 Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A debt instrument is measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and
its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and profit on the principal amount outstanding. The Company includes in this
category trade debts, short-term loans, advances and other receivables.

3.3.3 Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss if: (a) Its contractual terms
do not give rise to cash flows on specified dates that are Solely Payments of Principal and
Interest on the principal amount outstanding; (b) It is not held within a business model
whose objective is either to collect contractual cash flows, or to both collect contractual
cash flows and sell; or (c) At initial recognition, it is irrevocably designated as measured
at fair value through profit or loss when doing so eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise from measuring
assets or liabilities or recognizing the gains and losses on them on different bases.

3.3.4 Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

This category includes all financial liabilities, other than those measured at fair value through
profit or loss, if any.

3.3.5 Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or a part of a group of
similar financial assets) is derecognized where the rights to receive cash flows from the
asset have expired, or the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a pass-through arrangement and the Company has: (a)
Transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset; or (b) Neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control
of the asset. When the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an
asset (or has entered into a pass-through arrangement), and has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the
asset. In that case, the Company also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Company has retained. The Company derecognizes a financial liability
when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expired.

3.3.6 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities
A financial asset and a financial liability is off set and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheet if the Company has a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized

amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.
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3.4 Impairment losses
3.4.1 Financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated
with its financial assets. The Company applies the simplified approach to recognize
lifetime expected credit losses for trade debts, due from customers and contract assets.
Individually significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis.
The remaining financial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit
risk characteristics. The Company recognizes in profit or loss, as an impairment gain or
loss, the amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss
allowance at the reporting date.

3.4.2 Non financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories
and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there
is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists then the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. For goodwill and intangible assets that have indefinite lives or that
are not yet available for use, recoverable amount is estimated at each reporting date.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable
asset group that generates cash flows that largely are independent from other assets and
groups.

Impairment losses are recognized in profit and loss. Impairment losses recognized in
respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the units and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets
of the unit on a pro-rata basis. Impairment losses on goodwill shall not be reversed.

3.5 Taxation
Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises of current and deferred tax.
3.5.1 Current

The charge for current tax is based on taxable income at current rates of taxation after
taking into account tax credits, rebates and exemptions available, if any, or in accordance
with the final tax regime, where applicable, of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the
Ordinance) or the minimum tax under section 113 of the Ordinance or Alternate Corporate
Tax (ACT) under section 113C of the Ordinance, whichever is higher. Further , levies are
accounted for in accordance with the requirement of IFRIC - 21.

54 Big Bird Food Limited



NOTES TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended June 30, 2025

3.5.2 Deferred

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporary
differences arising from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities
in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
the taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused
tax losses and tax credits can be utilized. The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to
the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax is charged or credited in the profit and loss account, except in the case of
items credited or charged to equity in which case it is included in equity.

3.6 Leases
3.6.1 Right-of-use assets

The Company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease
(i.e., the date the underlying assets available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of
lease liabilities recognized, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or
before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated
useful lives of the assets.

3.6.2 Lease liabilities

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to
future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease
payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

3.7 ljarah rentals
In ijarah transactions, significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained
by the lessor. Islamic Financial Accounting Standard 2 - ‘ljarah’ requires the recognition of

‘Ujrah payments’ (lease rentals) against ijarah financing as an expense in profit or loss on
a straight line basis over the ijarah term.
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3.8 Dividend

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognized as a liability in the
Company’s financial statements in the period in which dividends are approved.

3.9 Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognized in the balance sheet when the Company has alegal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.
However, provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect
current best estimate. Where the outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is
not probable, a contingent liability is disclosed, unless the possibility of outflow is remote.

3.10 Inventories

Inventories, except for stock in transit, are stated at lower of cost and net realizable value.
Cost is determined as follows;

3.10.1 Stores and spares

Store, spares and loose tools are valued at lower of weighted average cost and net
realizable value. Cost is determined using weighted average method except for the items in
transit which is determined on the basis of cost incurred up to the balance sheet date. For
items which are slow moving and / or identified as surplus to the Company’s requirements,
adequate impairment is recognized. The company reviews the carrying amount of stores,
spare parts and loose tools on a regular basis and provision is made.

3.10.2 Stock in trade

Stock of raw material, work in process and finished goods are valued at lower of weighted
average cost and net realizable value. Stock of packing material is valued at weighted
average cost less impairment, if any. Cost of work in process and finished goods comprises
cost of direct material, labour and directly allocable manufacturing overheads.

Stock in transit is valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges paid thereon.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less estimated cost of completion and estimated cost necessary to be incurred in order
to make a sale.

3.1 Biological assets

Livestock are measured at their fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs. Fair value of
livestock is determined by an independent valuer on the basis of best available estimates
for livestock of similar attributes. Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value less
estimated point-of-sale costs of livestock is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.
Livestock are categorized as mature or immature. Mature livestock are those that have
attained harvestable specifications. Immature livestock have not yet reached that stage.
Farming cost such as feeding, labour cost and veterinary services are expensed as
incurred. The cost of purchase of chicks plus transportation charges are capitalized as
part of biological assets.

56 Big Bird Food Limited



NOTES TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended June 30, 2025

3.12 Trade debts and other receivables

Trade debts and other receivables are stated initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. Provision is made
on the basis of lifetime expected credit losses (ECLs) that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of the trade debts/ bad debts are written off when considered
irrecoverable.

3.13  Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized when or as performance obligations are satisfied by transferring
control of a promised goods or service to a customer, and control either transfers over
time or at a point in time. Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received
or receivable, excluding discounts, rebates and government levies.

Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis by reference to the principal
outstanding and the applicable rate of return.

3.14  Foreign currencies

All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into rupees at
exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Transactions in foreign currencies
are translated into rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the date of transaction. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated into rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the date of transaction.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency that are stated at fair
value are translated into rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the date when fair values
are determined. Exchange gains and losses are included in the profit and loss account
currently.

3.15 Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection
with the borrowing of funds. The Company capitalizes borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets as part
of the cost of these assets. The Company recognizes other borrowing costs as an
expense in the period in which it incurs.

3.16  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position comprise cash in hand,
cash at banks and short-term highly liquid deposits with a maturity of three months or less,
that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value.

3.17 Staff retirement benefits

The company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme for all its permanent employees
which provides for the graduated scale of benefits dependent on the length of service of
the employee on termination date, subject to the completion of minimum qualifying period
of service. Gratuity is based on employees’ last drawn salary. Remeasurement gains /
losses as per actuarial valuation done at financial year end are recognized immediately in
other comprehensive income and all other expenses are recognized in accordance with
IAS-19 “Employee Benefits” in the profit and loss account. The most recent valuation was
carried out as on June 30, 2025 using the “Projected Unit Credit Method”.
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2025 2024
Note  ------o--mo Rupees-----------
4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Operating fixed assets 41 7,701,451,739 7,221,930,685
Capital work-in-progress 4.2 - 359,802,612

7,701,451,739 _7,581,733,297

58 Big Bird Food Limited



§89'0€6'+ee’ L ¥6.'9¥9'099'C  865'¢96'¢6}  (9.6'684) 2LV'v.8'/9%'c  8L¥'2.G'288'6  (0S1'28S'Ce) 6.£'¥08'08Y 678'SSEVTh'6
§89'0€6'+ee'L ¥6.'9¥9'099'C  865'¢96'¢6}  (9.6'684) 2LV'v.8'/9%'c  8L¥'2.5'288'6  (0S1'28S'CC) 6.£'¥08'08Y 678'SSEVTh'6
02 |6SY'8tS 't 0+0°286'SH ovseie'e (926'681) LV1'6G6'CH 691°005°L¢ (052'289) 6v.'6LL'9 | 0LV'€96° S
0+ |gse'sve'v9 2c/l's8e'es §29'820°L - 860°/5€'9Y 116'€89° L1} - 005'€/G"} 2/%'090°9 +
GOlg |ESL'0G9'HEL'E yhI'SS8'sey’ L | L2L'6Ly' 0L |- 98e'5/e'88¢"} | /92'S0G°L02'G |- oSk hLb'eLy | LEL'VBEVEL'Y
SGolg |8I8'8et'sor'e LV6'€27'S60° L | L0V LYe'9L |- L7S'281H'6L0°F | G92'295°095'E | - - G9/'295°095°c
000'S/€'696 - - - - 000'S/£'696 (0o0'000°22) |- 000'G/E'166

%202 ‘0g aunp
SJOSSE POUMO [B10]

SOJOIUBA
syuewdinbe pue ainixy ‘INpuINS
AisuIyoew pue jueld

pue| ployseyy uo Buipiing
ploysel - pueq

S}OSSE PAUMQO

202 202 202 £202
P20Z9UNT 08 ounpog fesy (POAOWHOd IBSOISPUO T sy ounpog gesy  1PSO9SID SUOBRRY T oy
1B SE anjeA yoog
uoneloaideq JUNoOWY Pan[eAsy/1soD
v20e

6€L 15V 10L'L 289'02.'/98'  8.5'G99'602 (069°165'2) ¥6.'9v9'099C  gv'2/L'695'0L (008°000'€2) €v.'G6S'60L 8LV°L.S'T88'6
6€L 15V 10L'L 289'02.°/98'C  8.5'G99'602 (069°165'2) ¥6.'9v9'099°C  L2v'2LL'695'0L (008°000'€2) Ev.'G6S'60L 8LV'L.S'288'6

0z |6l€'68e6L 68178002 698'¢69'9 [ (069°165°2) |010'286GL 80S'€L'66 (008°000'€2) | 6€8°€L6'76 | 697005 L2

0+ |6v9'v61'69 £6v'501'09 o610, |- 2el's8e'es gvi'ooe'el |- S91'992'g) | 226'€€9'LLL
Goig |ezl'elr'ees's vr1L'05e'9L9’ L |080'ser0gt |- vLL'GGe'seY’ L |£292'892'808'S |- 000'8S2‘L | 292'505'202'G
G0l g |819'6/2'066'C 958'088°0L}' L [606'9G1'GL |- 1v6'82v'S60° L [ 0G'009° 1LY |- 6€.°260'109 | $92°295'095°C

000'G/£'696 - - - - 000'6/8'696 |- - 000'G/£'696

sie|nojued

§20g ‘0og sunp

S}OSSE POUMO [E10]

EETIVEN
sjuswdinba pue ainixy ‘einyuing
Kisuiyoew pue jueld

pue| ploysay uo Buiping
ploysay - pue

s}asse paumQ

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended June 30, 2025

NOTES TO THE

%

6202 ‘0 aunp

je se

eA oog

G20e
‘og aunr je sy

Jeak ayy o4

|esodsip
uo

uoneroaidag

%202
Ainp 10 e sy

G20e
‘og aunr je sy

|esodsiqg

PY

JNowy pen[eAsy/1sod

¥202
AInp 10 3e sy

sie[noed

sjosse paxlj bunesado

BBFL Annual Report 2025 59



NOTES TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended June 30, 2025

4.1.1 The following operating fixed assets with a net book value exceeding Rs 500,000 were disposed off during

the year:
) : e ) Relationship
Eertairs Registration ed Depreci- Net Book Sale lare IV!ode of Particulars of b'uyer
No. ation Value Proceede Disposal of buyers with
Company
Sabir Poultry
Hino Truck | RIS-16-2509 10,500,000 525,000 9,975,000 | 6,500,000 |(3,475,000)| Negotiation (Priate) None
Limited
Sabir Poultry
Hino Truck | RIS-16-2510 10,500,000 525,000 9,975,000 | 6,500,000 |(3,475,000)| Negotiation (Priate) None
Limited

4.1.2 Fair Value Measurement

The Company had revalued its freehold land, building and plant & machinery at June 30,
2021. The revaluation had been carried out by K.G.Traders (Private) Limited, an independent
valuers not connected to the Company and was on the panel of approved valuers of Pakistan
Banks Association and possessed appropriate qualification and experience in the fair value
measurements. The basis used for the revaluation of freehold land, buildings and machinery
were as follows;

Land

Instituted site and conducted market inquiries at surroundings area of the under valuation
premises to ascertain the current market value of similar type of land, which is selling in the
immediate surroundings.

Buildings

After taking into account the specification, type and class of building, the replacement value
has been computed considering inflation factor, currency devaluation, escalation of building
materials & labour rates etc.

Plant and machinery

For the purpose of valuation, the valuator evaluated the fixed asset in present condition, as
acquired and exist in the companies’ ownership. After verification of the physical existence,

location, condition of the property and best inquiries conducted in the market.

Forced Sales Value (FSV) of land, buildings and machinery was Rs. 793 million, Rs. 2,250
million and Rs. 2,966 million respectively as at June 30, 2021.

The fair valuation of revalued assets has been determined using level 2 inputs of fair value
hierarchy.

Had there been no revaluation the cost, accumulated depreciation and book value of
revalued assets as at June 30, 2025 would have been as follows:

Particulars

Land-freehold

Cost
131,674,928

Accumulated
Depreciation

Book
Value

131,674,928

Building on - freehold land

2,317,537,180

905,747,941

1,411,789,239

Plant and Machinery

3,141,191,111

1,340,146,803

1,801,044,308

Total

5,590,403,219

2,245,894,743

3,344,508,476
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2025 2024
Note  ------o--o- Rupees-----------
4.2 Capital work-in-progress
Civil works - building - 359,802,612
- 359,802,612
4.2.1 The movement in capital work in progress is as
follows:
Balance at the beginning of the year 359,802,612 122,393,167
Addition during the year 241,295,127 237,409,445
Transferred to operating fixed assets (601,097,739) -
- 359,802,612
4.3 Depreciation for the year has been allocated as
follows;
Cost of sales 195,951,939 183,779,420
Administrative expenses 6,693,869 2,212,840
Distribution and selling expenses 7,019,770 6,970,338

209.665.578 192,962,598

5 LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

To employees - secured, considered good 756,233 636,000
Movement in advance to staff:
Balance at beginning of the year 684,000 1,740,241
Add: Advances during the year 96,233 -
Less: Received during the year - 1,156,241
Loans to employees -secured 780,233 684,000
Less: Current portion of long term loans and advances 24,000 48,000
756,233 636,000

5.1  Company has provided interest free loan to its employees, adjustable against their monthly
salary. These advances are secured against gratuity payable to staff.

6 LONG TERM DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Security deposits - ljarah 6.1 - 3,729,680
Security deposits - other 6.2 10,416,400 15,056,528
10,416,400 18,786,208

6.1  Security deposits relating to ljarah were capitalized during the year.

6.2  This includes security deposits for gas.
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2025 2024
Note ---------—- Rupees-----------
7 STORES AND SPARES
Stores and spares 291,837,867 261,907,586
Impairment allowance for slow moving and obsolete
items 7.1 (2,844,590)

288,993,277 261,907,586

7.1 Impairment allowance for slow moving and
obsolete items

As at beginning of the year - -
Recognized during the year 2,844,590 -
As at end of the year 2,844,590 -

7.2  There are no spare parts held exclusively for capitalization as at the reporting date.

8 STOCK IN TRADE

Raw material 523,230,205 96,185,521
Packing material 54,990,750 50,157,549
Work in process - -
Finished goods 1,335,169,463 1,128,855,328

1,913,390,418 _1,275,198,398

9 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

This represents poultry livestock. It comprises of the

following;
Biological assets 254,754,956 -
254,754,956 -
9.1 Reconciliation of carrying amounts of
poultry livestock.
Opening balance = -
Acquisition during the year 563,774,380 -
Rearing cost 1,674,811,301 -
Biological assets consumed during the year (1,983,830,725) -
Carrying amount at the end of the year which
approximates the fair value 9.2 254,754,956 -

9.2  This represents, immature birds that are being raised for consumption in the future.
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10

11

12

13

14

15

Note
TRADE DEBTS
Trade debts - considered good - unsecured
Allowance for expected credit losses 10.1

10.1 Movement in allowance for expected credit losses

At beginning of the year
Charge for the year
At end of the year

LOANS AND ADVANCES

Current maturity of advance to staff
Advance to suppliers

Letter of credit

Sales tax refundable

Other advances

DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Prepaid expenses
Security deposits

SHORT TERM INVESTMENT

Term deposit receipts 13.1

13.1

2,161,597,158
(204,421,335)

1,159,786,140
(156,480,002)

1,957,175,823

1,003,306,138

156,480,002 102,172,736
47,941,333 54,307,265
204,421,335 156,480,002
24,000 48,000
6,519,044 10,358,998
15,680,481 895,961
11,735,501 -
2,746,524 3,439,573
36,705,549 14,742 532
6,045,382 4,369,210
2,890,999 12,683,499
8,936,381 17,052,709

= 6,230,575

= 6,230,575

This represent term deposit receipts with financial institution which matured during the year

carrying profit at the rate of 10% to 20%. These TDR’s matured and were encashed in July

2024.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash at banks - current account ( local currency)
Cash at banks - saving account ( local currency)
Cash in hand

SHARE CAPITAL
15.1 Authorised share capital

Number of Shares

360,000,000 (2024: 360,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs.

10 each

15.2 Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital

Ordinary shares 298,905,786 ( 2024:

298,905,786) of Rs. 10 each, fully paid in cash 15.3

190,757,410 153,862,612
132,726,941 -
3,194,207 3,579,559
326,678,557 157,442,171
3,600,000,000 _3,600,000,000
2,989,057,860 _2,989,057,860
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Note

15.3 All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets. Holders of the
shares are entitled to one vote per share at the general meetings of the Company.

15.4 The movement in ordinary shares issued is as under:

Opening balance

Shares issued during the period for
consideration other than cash- (issued as part
of the merger scheme)

Closing balance

16 MERGER RESERVE

298,905,786

297,093,000

1,812,786

298,905,786 298,905,786

This represents reserve arising on merger of Meta Tech Trading Limited into Big Bird Foods Limit-
ed on June 01, 2023. The scheme filed by the company was approved by the Lahore High Court,

Lahore (Civil Original No. 43907/2023), on June 26, 2024.

17  SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF FIXED ASSETS

Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets
171

17.1 Opening balance
Less: Incremental depreciation for the year
Transfer of surplus to retained earnings on disposal of
fixed assets
Set off of accumulated losses against
surplus under the merger scheme.
Closing balance before defferred tax
Related deferred tax liability
Closing balance

17.2

Reconciliation of deferred tax attributed to
revaluation surplus

17.2

Opening balance
Deferred tax on incremental depreciation
Closing balance at the end of year

1,344,783,148

1,433,093,840

1,344,783,148

1,433,093,840

1,433,093,840
(124,381,256)

3,422,486,307
(128,959,312)

(5,600,000)

(1,892,231,356)

1,308,712,584
36,070,564

1,395,695,639
37,398,200

1,344,783,148

1,433,093,840

(907,527,040)
36,070,564

(944,925,240)
37,398,200

(871,456,475)

(907,527,040)

17.3 The surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment is not available for distribution to
the shareholders in accordance with section 241 of the Companies Act, 2017.
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2025 2024
Note ~  ---------—-—- Rupees-----------
18 LOAN FROM DIRECTOR - RELATED PARTY
Loan from director - related party 1,355,368,961 -
18.1 1,355,368,961 -

Balance at the beginning of the year - -

Addition during the year

Repayment during the year
Balance at the end of the year

1,490,634,971 -
(135,266,010) -
1,355,368,961 -

18.1 Loan from directors' comprises of the following;

18.2

Balance at
the end of the
year

Addition
during the
year

Balance at the Repayment
during the

year

beginning of the
year

Mr.Abdul Basit - 101,000,000 - 101,000,000
Dr. Abdul Karim - 331,761,050 14,615,310 317,145,740
Mr.Ahmad Kamal - 16,000,000 - 16,000,000
Dr.Mustafa Kamal - 423,381,032 37,000,000 386,381,032
Dr.Muhammad Aleem - 32,000,000 - 32,000,000
Mr.Salman Basit - 586,492,889 83,650,700 502,842,189
Total - 1,490,634,971 135,266,010 1,355,368,961

This represents, interest bearing loan at one month KIBOR, given by directors to meet the
liquidity requirements of the Company. These loans is repayable subject to availability of
funds with the company. In line with Technical Release - 32 (TR 32 - Accounting Directors’
Loan) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP). The mark-up on

these loans is payable on demand.

19 LONG TERM FINANCES - SECURED

191
19.2

From conventional banks / financial institutions
From Islamic banks
Long term finance

Less: current portion shown under current liability
Long portion of long term finance

1,195,168,181

1,591,224,249

19.1 From banking companies and other financial institutions - secured

National Bank of Pakistan 19.1.1
Soneri Bank Limited 19.1.2
The Bank of Punjab 19.1.3
United Bank Limited 19.1.4
Saudi Pak IAIC Limited 19.1.5
Saudi Pak IAIC Limited 19.1.5
Pak China Investment Company Limited 19.1.6
JS Bank Limited 19.1.7

Closing balance at the end of year

447,490,000 524,790,000
1,642,658,181 2,116,014,249
(999,233,157) (1,317,507,615)
643,425,024 798,506,635
241,287,630 241,287,630
92,477,409 115,347,537
52,800,000 52,800,000
154,378,117 173,878,117
- 251,901,132

- 247,309,302
590,225,025 439,700,531
64,000,000 69,000,000

1,195,168,181

1,691,224,249
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19.1.1 The term finance facility approved by National Bank of Pakistan under State Bank of Pakistan’s
Scheme of Refinancing for Storage of Agriculture Produce (FFSAP, vide SBP SMEFD Circular
# 08/2010) is secured by the way of () First JPP Charge up to Rs. 661 million on fixed
assets of the company by way of hypothecation of machinery and mortgage (i) 1% notional
registered of Rs. 6.61 million for marking lien of security trustee and (iii) Personal Guarantees
of sponsoring directors. Mark-up is applicable @ 3 Month KIBOR + 2.50% per annum
payable on quarterly basis. The entire outstanding balance of Rs. 241 million is overdue
as at the reporting date. Subsequent to the reporting date, the Company entered into a
restructuring arrangement with the bank. Under the revised terms, the repayment schedule
have been modified. As the restructuring was agreed subsequent to year end, no adjustment
has been made in these financial statements.

19.1.2 The facility represents a term loan sanctioned by Soneri Bank Limited, secured by way of (i)
first joint pari passu charge of Rs. 386.14 million over the fixed assets of the Company, (i) 1%
notional registered charge of Rs. 5.27 million for lien marking, and (i) personal guarantees of
the sponsoring directors.

The loan, originally carrying mark-up at the rate of 3-Month KIBOR plus 1.75% per annum
and maturing in December 2025, was subsequently restructured with revised maturity till
June 2029. Under the restructured terms, the facility carries mark-up at the bank’s Cost of
Funds, payable in eight equal quarterly instalments commencing from September 2027 to
June 2029. Overdue instalments as at year-end amount to Rs. 4.1 million.

19.1.3 It represents term finance facility approved by The Bank of Punjab “BOP” for the tenor of
six years. The facility was repayable in twenty equal quarterly instalments ending on 31-03-
2020. The limit is secured by way of () JPP Charge up to Rs.241 million on land, building
and machinery installed at company’s foods processing plant located at Mauza Jumber
Khurd, District Kasur (i) Personal Guarantees of sponsoring directors. Mark-up rate is
6 months KIBOR + 1.75% payable at quarterly basis. An amount of Rs. 52.8 million on
account of principal is over due as at reporting date. Subsequent to the reporting date, the
Company entered into a restructuring arrangement with the bank. Under the revised terms,
the repayment schedule have been modified. As the restructuring was agreed subsequent
to year end, no adjustment has been made in these financial statements.

19.1.4 The loan approved by United Bank Limited (“UBL”) is secured by way of (i) joint pari passu
charge of Rs. 334 million on fixed assets including land, building, plant and machinery of the
Company, (i) exclusive charge of Rs. 267 million over a poultry farm measuring 1193K-10M
located at Mauza Hadbast Chak No. 14, Rakh Haiderabad, Tehsil Mankeera (Bhakkar),
owned by Grand Parent Poultry (Private) Limited, (iii) corporate guarantee of Big Feed (Private)
Limited, a sister concern, and (iv) personal guarantees of the sponsoring directors.

The loan, originally carrying mark-up at 6-Month KIBOR plus 1.75% per annum, was
subsequently restructured and now carries mark-up at UBL’s Cost of Funds. The facility has
final settlement in December 2027, with mark-up payable in step-up quarterly instalments
during the last year of the tenor. Overdue instalments as at year-end amount to Rs. 13.3 million.
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19.1.5 During the year, the Company fully settled the outstanding principal balance amounting to
Rs. 500 million relating to both long-term facilities availed from Saudi Pak Industrial and
Agricultural Investment Company Limited (“SPICQO”). The facilities were secured by way of (i)
ranking charge of Rs. 667 million over fixed assets of the Company, (i) first exclusive charge
of Rs. 294 million over the properties located at Ahmed Block, New Garden Town, Lahore
owned by group companies i.e. Grand Parent Poultry (Private) Limited, Big Bird Poultry
Breeders (Private) Limited and Big Feed (Private) Limited, (i) first exclusive charge over land,
building, plant and machinery of Raiwind farm (owned by Big Bird Poultry Breeders (Private)
Limited) measuring area 163K-17M situated at Mauza Rakh Jodhu Dheer, Tehsil & District
Lahore, (iv) ranking charge of Rs. 467 million over current assets of the Company, and (v)
personal guarantees of all the directors.

19.1.6 The term finance facility of Rs. 475 million was approved by Pak China Investment Company
Limited “PCICL” for the tenor of five years including grace period of eighteen months. It is
secured against () 1st SECP Charge of Rs. 633.33 million and token mortgage of Rs. 0.10
million over a poultry Farm measuring 1289K-16M situated at Mouza Gandakas, Tehsil Pindi
Gheb, Attock owned by Big Bird Poultry Breeders Pvt. Limited, a sister concern (ii) Ranking
charge of Rs. 633.33 over all present and future fixed assets of the company. (i) Corporate
Guarantees of associate concerns i.e. Big Bird Poultry Breeders Pvt. Limited and Big Feed
Pvt. Limited and (iv) Personal Guarantees of sponsoring directors. The facility originally was
repayable in 14 equal quarterly.

In December 2024, the PCICL approved extension in repayments till December 2030 on
the following terms: (i) principal will be repaid in step-up 24 quarterly instalments, with the
last instalment due in December 2030; and (i) profit/mark-up carries at 3-Month KIBOR -
1%, with repayment commencing from March 2029 and continuing until final settlement in
December 2030, together with the last principal instalment.

19.1.7 The principal of PKR 64 million relating to JS Bank Limited will be repaid in 20 quarterly step-
up instalments, as detailed in the repayment schedule provided with the Facility Offer Letter
(FOL). Interest will be calculated based on the bank’s cost of funds, with a grace period of
three years. The markup for the first three years will be deferred and repaid in equal quarterly
instalments over the last two years. The loan is secured by a joint pari passu charge of PKR
100 million over the company’s present and future current assets, a ranking charge on fixed
assets valued at PKR 134 million, and personal guarantees from all directors.

2025 2024
Note = ---------—-—- Rupees-----------
19.2 From Islamic Banks
Dubai Islamic Bank 19.2.1 122,250,000 150,250,000
Askari Islamic Bank 19.2.2 141,440,000 179,840,000
MCB Islamic Bank 19.2.3 183,800,000 194,700,000

447,490,000 524,790,000
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19.2.1 This represents a Shirkat-ul-Melk Cum facility sanctioned by Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan
Limited, which had been converted from the outstanding exposure of short-term borrowings
(wakalah istithmar). The facility is secured against (i) token registered mortgage of Rs.
100,000/- and the remaining by way of equitable mortgage over property measuring
214K-19M situated at Hadbast Mauza Jamber Khurd, Tehsil Pattoki, District Kasur, owned
by Mr. M. Ahmad Kamal S/o M. Mustafa Kamal, director of the Company, (i) ranking charge
of Rs. 534 million over current assets of the Company, and (i) personal guarantees of the
sponsoring directors.

The facility, originally carrying mark-up at 6-Month KIBOR plus 2% per annum and maturing
in December 2025, was negotiated through a settlement agreement with the bank. Under
the revised terms, the maturity has been extended till April 2028, with principal repayable in
monthly instalments. Profit, as per the arrangement, is to be charged at the bank’s Cost of
Funds and will be settled during the last two years of the tenor, commencing from May 2026.
Overdue instalments as at year-end amount to Rs. 37.5 million.

19.2.2 The Diminishing Musharakah Facility sanctioned by Askari Bank Limited is secured by way of
(i) token registered mortgage of Rs. 0.10 million and the remaining equitable mortgage over a
property (poultry farm) measuring 1,184K-08M situated at Chak No. 3, Rakh Mankira, Tehsil
Mankira, District Bhakkar, owned by M/s. Grand Parent Poultry (Private) Limited, a sister
concern, (i) ranking charge of Rs. 533.34 million over current assets of the Company, and (jii)
personal guarantees of the sponsoring directors.

The facility, originally carrying mark-up at 3-Month KIBOR plus 1.5% per annum and maturing
in earlier tenor, was settled with an extension in maturity till June 2028. Under the revised
terms, the facility is repayable in eighteen quarterly instalments commencing from March
2024. Profit, as per the settlement agreement, is to be charged at the bank’s Cost of Funds
and will be settled quarterly during the last two years of the tenor. Overdue instalments as at
year-end amount to Rs. 16.9 million.

19.2.3 The “Diminishing Musharakah” facility approved by MCB Islamic Bank Limited (“MIB”) is
secured by way of (i) JPP charge of Rs. 267 million on all present and future fixed assets of
the food processing plant located at Mauza Jumber, Tehsil Pattoki, District Kasur, (i) personal
guarantees of the sponsoring directors, and (i) corporate guarantees of Big Feed (Private)
Limited, Grand Parent Poultry (Private) Limited, and Big Bird Poultry Breeders (Private)
Limited.

The facility, originally carrying profit at RTK plus 1% per annum, under a settlement agreement,
extending the maturity till December 2028. As per the revised terms, profit is chargeable
at the bank’s Cost of Funds, and the facility is repayable in twenty quarterly instalments
commencing from June 2024. Overdue instalments as at year-end amount to Rs. 47 million.
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2025 2024
Note ~  ----o-oo-- Rupees-----------
20 DEFERRED MARKUP
Deferred markup 206,133,033 690,347,768
Long portion of deferred markup 206,133,033 690,347,768
21 DEFERRED LIABILITIES
Deferred taxation 21.1 491,744,008 503,450,223

211

21.2

Deferred taxation

The liability for deferred taxation comprises
temporary differences relating to:

Accelerated tax depreciation

Retirement benefit

Business losses and unabsorbed tax depreciation
Allowance for expected credit losses

Provision for obsolete stores and spares
Minimum tax and alternate corporate tax

Others provisions

Reconciliation of deferred tax

Opening deferred tax liability

Closing deferred tax liability

Deferred tax attributed to other
comprehensive income

Net deferred tax charge / (credit) recognized
in statement of profit or loss

491,744,008

503,450,223

1,395,853,826
(45,162,314)
(412,888,073)
(59,282,187)
(824,931)

1,377,503,280
(35,475,991)
(571,357,592)
(45,379,201)

(347,102,518)  (203,670,586)
(38,849,795) (18,169,687)
491,744,008 503,450,223
503,450,223 730,871,525
491,744,008 503,450,223

(976,957) -

(10,729,258)

(227,421,302
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21.3 Movement in temporary differences for the year

Recognised

Balance as at June . . )
Recognised in in other Balance as at June

30, 2024

Profit and loss comprehensive 30, 2025
income

Taxable temporary difference
Accelerated depreciation 1,377,508,280 18,350,546 - 1,395,853,826

Deductible temporary difference

Provision for retirement benefit (85,475,991) (8,709,366) (976,957) (45,162,314)
Business losses and unabsorbed

tax depreciation (571,357,592) 158,469,519 - (412,888,073)
Allowance for expected credit

losses (45,379,201) (13,902,986) - (69,282,187)
Impairment allowance for slow

moving and obsolete items - (824,931) - (824,931)
Minimum and alternate corporate

tax (203,670,586) (143,431,932) - (847,102,518)
Others provisions (18,169,687) (20,680,108) - (38,849,795)
Mr.Salman Basit 503,450,223 (10,729,258) (976,957) 491,744,008

22 EMPLOYEE’S BENEFIT OBLIGATION

Retirement benefits - staff gratuity 155,732,118 122,331,005
22.1 155,732,118 122,331,005
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2025 2024
Note ~  ---------—-—- Rupees-----------
22.1 Changes in present value of defined
benefit obligations
Present value of defined benefit obligation 122,331,005 90,181,735
Expenses to be charged to P&L 22.2 39,619,132 31,020,151
Remeasurements chargeable in other
comprehensive income 22.3 3,368,818 703,000
Benefits paid (9,586,837) (6,160,977)
Net liability transferred - 6,587,096
Present value of defined benefit obligation 155,732,118 122,331,005
22.2 Expenses to be charged to P&L
Current service cost 24,202,249 19,737,872
Past service cost 536,787 -
Interest cost on defined benefits obligation 14,880,096 11,282,279
39,619,132 31,020,151
22.3 Total remeasurements chargeable in other
comprehensive income
Remeasurement of plan obligation:
Actuarial gain from changes in financial as-
sumptions (1,091,370) (4,932,230)
Experience adjustments 4,460,188 5,635,230
3,368,818 703,000
22.4 Significant actuarial assumptions
Discount rate used for interest cost in P&L
charge 14.75% 16.25%
Discount rate used for the year end obligation 11.75% 14.75%
Weighted average annual salary increase 16.17% 9%
Average duration of the defined benefit obli-
gation 9 Years 8 Years
Estimated expense charged to profit and loss
for next financial years 44 million 35 million
225 Year end sensitivity analysis on defined
benefit obligation
Discount rate + 100 bps 129,452,876 96,263,099
Discount rate - 100 bps 153,375,178 113,445,576
Salary increase + 100 bps 153,635,376 113,691,182
Salary increase - 100 bps 129,009,214 95,896,163
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2025 2024
Note ~  ----------—- Rupees-----------
22.6 Distribution of timing of benefit payments

Years

1 19,877,551 15,637,541
2 19,667,941 15,596,268
3 19,606,498 15,440,671
4 19,883,789 15,694,320
5 20,947,701 16,415,298
61010 126,272,031 105,558,177
11 and above 2,254,934,964 2,961,718,298

22.7 Risk associated with scheme

Mortality risks
The risk that the actual mortality experience is different than the assumed mortality. This effect
is more pronounced in schemes where the age and service distribution is on the higher side.

Withdrawal risks

The risk of actual withdrawals experience is different from assumed withdrawal probability.
The significance of the withdrawal risk varies with age, service and the entitled benefits of
the beneficiary.

Final salary risks

The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than what we
assumed. Since the benefit is calculated on the final salary (which will closely reflect inflation
and other macroeconomic factors), the benefit amount increases as salary increases.

23  SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

Short term borrowings-secured 23.1 189,249,213 189,249,213

23.1 Facilities have been obtained from various conventional banks under mark-up arrangements
against sanctioned limit. Such facilities have been obtained at mark-up rates ranging from
13.59% t0 21.72% (2024: 22.96% 10 24.53%) per annum, payable monthly/quarterly on the
balance outstanding as per agreement. The facilities are secured against ranking/ exclusive/
joint pari passu charges over present and future movable/ immovable assets, hypothecation
of current assets and personal guarantees of directors.

24  TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade creditors 24.1 584,561,392 605,343,396
Accrued expenses 107,159,134 67,313,286
Sales tax payable 35,679,294 6,004,937
Income tax payable 141,605,656 94,532,020
Workers’ profit participation fund 24.2 83,943,104 45,401,516
Workers’ welfare fund 24.3 50,021,706 18,123,325

1,002,970,287 836,718,481
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241 There was no balance outstanding in respect of associates as at June 30, 2025 (2024: Nil)

2025 2024
Note =~ ----------- Rupees-----------
24.2 Workers’ profit participation fund
Opening balance 45,401,516 -
Payment made during the year (45,401,516) -
Charge for the year 31 83,943,104 45,401,516
Closing balance 83,943,104 45,401,516
24.3 Workers’ welfare fund
Opening balance 18,123,325 870,749
Payment made during the year - -
18,123,325 870,749
Charge for the year 31 31,898,380 17,252,576
Closing balance 50,021,705 18,123,325
25 ACCRUED AND DEFERRED MARK-UP
Markup under long term finance 772,311,154 458,082,989
Markup under short term borrowings 97,664,672 79,489,273
Markup under loan to directors 79,869,304 -
Accrued mark-up 949,845,130 537,572,263
26 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

26.1 Contingencies

Contingencies as on balance sheet date were Rs. nil.

26.2 Commitments

26.2.1 The company has opened letters of credit for import of spare parts and ingredients amounting

Rs.309.8 million (2024: 27.6 million).

26.2.2 Bank guarantee given by bank on the behalf of company: Rs 12.99 million (2024: 12.99

million).

26.2.3 The company has given corporate guarantees in favor of its associated companies of Rs.

257.10 million (2024: 257 million).

26.2.4 The amount of future payments under ljarah and the period in which these payments will

become due are as follows:

Not later than one year - 19,088,606
Later than one but not later than five year - 46,840,790
- 65,929,396

liarah Facility (Leasing) for purchase of commercial & non commercial vehicles amounting to
Rs. 100 million for the tenor of five years has been approved by Meezan Bank Limited. The
rentals were paid in full during the year and the security was released by the bank in March
2025, security deposits together with the subsequent rentals were capitalized.
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2025 2024
Note ~  ----ooooo-- Rupees-----------
27 SALES - NET

Local sales 12,154,466,659 7,670,339,364
Less: sales tax (1,160,269,953)  (828,060,319)
Export sale 370,634,583 367,588,865

11,364,831,289  7,209,867,910

28 COST OF SALES

Raw material consumed 28.1 5,046,427,544 4,454,405,039
Biological assets consumed 28.2 1,983,830,725 -
Salaries, wages and benefits 28.3 633,703,693 427,268,611
Packing material 265,664,806 173,049,554
Freight, loading and unloading 74,020,636 46,325,057
Power and fuel 845,339,888 595,073,924
Insurance expense 5,094,201 4,904,076
Rent, rate and taxes 23,791,185 40,575,730
Watch and ward 21,103,496 17,149,324
Miscellaneous 3,822,804 8,168,981
Repair and maintenance 90,488,190 58,335,227
Depreciation 4.1 195,951,939 183,779,420

Increase in finished goods

28.1 Opening raw material
Purchases made during the year
Less: Closing raw material
Raw material consumed

28.2 Opening raw material
Purchases made during the year
Less: Closing raw material
Biological assets consumed

9,189,239,108 6,009,034,944
(206,314,135) (386,701,981)

8.982,924.973 _5,622,332,963

96,185,521 108,333,246

5,473,472,228 4,442,257,314

523,230,205 96,185,521

5,046,427,544 _ 4,454 405,039

2,238,585,681 -

254,754,956 -

1,983,830,725 -

28.3 Salaries, wages and benefits includes defined benefit plan of Rs. 20.2 million (2024: Rs. 15.9

million).
29 DISTRIBUTION AND SELLING EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and benefits 29.1
Marketing, advertisement and promotions

Freight outward

Rent, rate and taxes

ljarah rental

Other selling expenses

Depreciation 4.1

90,853,998 65,804,864
121,241,048 17,818,496
105,976,326 78,763,741

35,517,739 17,007,704

12,540,196 18,312,697

541,271 106,550
7,019,770 6,970,338
373,690,349 204,784,390

29.1 Salaries, wages and benefits includes defined benefit plan of Rs. 7.5 million (2024: Rs. 5.7

million).
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2025 2024
Note ~  ----o-oo-- Rupees-----------
30 ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and benefits 30.1 108,098,891 60,335,663
Printing & stationary 8,633,538 5,726,632
Rent, rate and taxes 23,992,984 2,388,455
Insurance 4,109,901 1,278,722
Communications 7,726,925 5,248,089
Entertainment 3,225,907 3,870,239
Vehicles running and maintenance 24,023,633 23,255,986
Travelling and conveyance 16,416,065 15,981,393
Legal and professional charges 17,705,220 17,035,491
Repair and maintenance 4,376,318 3,114,769
Auditors’ remuneration 30.2 2,299,983 1,427,260
Miscellaneous 10,556,099 9,980,648
Depreciation 4.1 6,693,869 2,212,840

237,859,331 151,856,186

30.1 Salaries wages and benefits includes defined benefit plan of Rs. 11.7 million (2024: Rs. 4

million).
30.2 Auditor’s remuneration

Annual statutory audit

Half yearly review

Review report under Code Of Corporate
Governance

Reimbursable expenses

31 OTHER EXPENSES

Workers’ (profit) participation fund

Workers’ welfare fund

Impairment allowance for slow moving and obsolete

items 71
Expected credit losses of trade debts 10.1
Exchange loss

32 OTHER INCOME

From financial assets

Interest on bank deposits

From non-financial assets

Gain on disposal of assets

Gain on restructuring 32.1
Miscellaneous income

1,365,000 1,365,000
600,000 -
266,497 -

68,486 62,260
2,299,983 1,427,260
83,943,104 45,401,516
31,898,380 17,252,576
2,844,589 -
47,941,333 54,307,265
1,714,274 5,600,000
168,341,680 122,561,357
6,526,090 11,055,519
3,565,890 5,007,226
224,307,579 -
70,153,017 65,126,966
304,552,576 81,189,711

32.1 This represents the restructuring gain on modification of a financial liability as per IFRS - 9,

during the year.

33  FINANCE COST

Mark-up on short term borrowings
Mark-up on long term financing
Mark-up on directors' loan

Bank charges

34,537,914 20,028,010
216,982,986 320,008,502
87,969,304 -
4,056,732 4,109,978
343,546,936 344,146,490
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34

35

35.1

36

2025 2024
Note ~  ----ooooo-- Rupees-----------
LEVIES
Levies 34.1 - 3,778,958
- 3,778,958
34.1 Thereis no charge for the year ( 2024: Represents final tax under sections 154) of income tax
ordinance 2001, representing levies in terms of requirements of IFRIC 21/IAS 37.

TAXATION
Current tax 35.1 407,152,004 230,809,840
Deferred tax 35.2 (10,729,258)  (227,421,302)

396,422,746 3,388,538
Reconciliation Of Levy And Income Tax Under IAS-12
Current tax liability as per applicable tax laws 407,152,004 234,588,798
Portion of current tax liability representing income tax
as per IAS-12 (407,152,004) (230,809,840)
Portion of current tax liability representing levy as per
IFRIC 21 / IAS 37 - (8,778,958)

Difference

35.2 Provision for current taxation is based on Alternate Corporate Tax at the current rates of
taxation. Accordingly the reconciliation between accounting profit before tax and tax expense

has not been presented in these financial statements.

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Profit before taxation

Adjustment for non-cash charges and other items:
Depreciation

Finance cost

Gain on restructuring

Interest on bank deposits

Impairment allowance for slow moving and obsolete items
Other adjustments

Provision for workers’ profit participation fund
Gain on disposal of fixed assets

Provision for staff gratuity

Provision for expected credit loss

Provision for workers’ welfare fund

Income before working capital changes

Effect on cash flow due to working capital changes:
(Increase)/Decrease in stores and spares

Increase in stock in trade

Increase in biological assets

Increase in trade debts

(Increase)/decrease in loans and advances
(Increase)/decrease in deposits and prepayments
Increase in trade and other payable
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1,563,020,596 845,376,235
209,665,578 || 192,962,598
343,546,936 || 344,146,490

(224,307,579) -

(6,526,090) || (11,055,519
2,844,589 -

L 963,460

83,943,104 45,401,516
(3,565,890) (5,007,226)
39,619,132 31,020,151
47,941,333 54,307,265
31,898,380 17,252,576
525,059,493 _ 669,991,311
2,088,080,090 1,515,367,546

(29,930,281)
(638,192,020)
(254,754,956)

(1,001,811,013)

31,292,689
(372,099,314)

(151,757,410)

(21,963,018) || 115,301,142
8,116,328 (7,768,950)
48,738,201 70,254,892
(1,889,796,759) _ (314,776,951)
198,283,331 _1,200,590,596
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37

38

39

2025 2024
Note ~  ----ooooo-- Rupees-----------
36.1 Cash and cash equivalents
Short term investment 13 - 6,200,000
Cash and bank balances 14 326,678,557 157,442,171

326,678,557 163,642,171

Short term Long Term

borrowings Financing
----------- Rupees-----------
Reconciliation of movement of liabilities to cash flows
arising from financing activities
Balance as at July 01, 2023 341,628,382 2,248,294,095
Changes from Financing Cash Flows
Repayment and restructruing-net -1 (132,279,846)
Short term borrowings net (152,279,169) -
Changes from Financing Cash Flows (152,279,169) (132,279,846)
Balance as at June 30, 2024 189,249,213 2,116,014,249
Balance as at July 01, 2024 189,249,213 2,116,014,249
Changes from Financing Cash Flows
Repayment and restructruing-net \ -] (473,356,068)]
Changes from Financing Cash Flows - (473,356,068)
Balance as at June 30, 2025 189,249,213 1,642,658,181
EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED
There is no dilutive effect on basic earnings per
share of the Company, basic is computed as follows:
Profit after tax for the year Rupee 1,166,597,850 838,208,739
Weighted average number of ordinary shares out-
standing during the year Number 298,905,786 298,905,786
Earning per share Rupee 3.90 2.80

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company’s objective in managing risks is the creation and protection of shareholders’ value.
Risk is inherent in the Company’s activities, but it is managed through a process of ongoing
identification, measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. The process
of risk management is critical to the Company’s continuing profitability. The Company is exposed to
credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (which includes interest rate risk and price risk) arising from
the financial instruments it holds.

The management oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk
management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework
in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The management is assisted in its oversight role
by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management
controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the management.
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The Company finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working
capital with a view to maintain an appropriate various sources of finance to minimize risk.

39.1 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market price, such as foreign exchange rates, interest
rates and equity prices will effect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of
financial instruments. The Company is not exposed to price risk.

39.2 Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly from
future commercial transactions or receivables and payables that exist due to transactions in
foreign currencies.

The company is not exposed to currency risks since there are no financial instruments at
the reporting date whose future cash flows is dependent upon changes in foreign exchange
rates.

39.3 Interest rate risk

Interest risk is the risk that the fair value or future value cash flows of the financial instruments
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The company’s exposure to the
risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the company’s long term and short
term financing arrangement at floating interests rates to meet its business operations and
working capital requirements. The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables hold constant:

Effect on profit before tax

Increase / Decrease in basis points
+100 18,319,074 23,052,635
-100 (18,319,074) (23,052,635)

39.4 Other price risk

Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from
interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific
to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial
instruments traded in the market.

39.5 Credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial
loss for the other party by failing to discharge an obligation. Credit risk arises from deposits
with banks, trade and other receivables.
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39.6

39.6.1

Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was as follows:

Trade debts 39.6.1 1,957,175,823 1,003,306,138
Loans and advances 780,233 684,000
Deposits and prepayments 13,307,399 31,469,707
Bank balances 190,757,410 153,862,612

2,162,020,865 _1,189,322 458

Expected credit losses
The aging of trade receivables at the reporting date is:

2025 2024 2025 2024
Percentage Gross Allowance Gross Allowance
----------- Rupees-----------
Past due 0-180 days 9.35% | 9.27% | 2,152,246,032 | 201,178,363 | 826,421,252 76,614,166
Past due 181-360 days | 30.54% | 20.36% 4,605,175 1,406,213 | 199,220,916 40,563,916
Over 360 days 38.70% | 29.30% 4,745,951 1,836,761 134,143,972 39,301,920
2,161,597,158 204,421,337 1,159,786,140 156,480,002

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables during the year

is as follows;

Balance at July 1st 156,480,002 102,172,736

Charge for the period 47,941,333 54,307,265
204,421,335 156,480,002

The allowance in respect of trade receivables are used to record impairment losses unless
the Company is satisfied that no recovery of the amount owing is possible; at that point the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off against the financial asset directly.

Trade debts are essentially due from local customers . The Company does not expect these
counterparties to fail to meet their obligations. The majority of sales to the Company’s
customers are made on specific terms. Customer credit risk is managed by subject to the
Company’s established policy, procedures and controls relating to customer credit risk
management. Credit limits are established for all customers based on internal rating criteria.
Credit quality of the customer is assessed based on an extensive credit rating. Outstanding
customer receivables are regularly monitored.

39.7 Credit quality of major financial assets

The Company limits its exposure to credit risk by only investing in highly liquid securities and
only with counterparties that have a credit rating of at least A1 and A. Given these high credit
ratings, management does not expect any counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

39.8 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk represent the risk that the company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations
associated with financial liabilities.
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Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securi-
ties, the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities. Due
to the dynamic nature of the company’s business, the Board maintains flexibility in funding by
maintaining availability under committed credit lines.

Management monitors the forecasts of the company’s cash and cash equivalents on the
basis of expected cash flow. This is generally carried out in accordance with practice and
limits set by the company. The company’s liquidity management policy involves projecting
cash flows and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet its liabilities, monitor-
ing balance sheet liquidity ratios against internal and external regulatory requirements, and
maintaining debt financing plans.

The table below analyses the company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date.
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows as the im-
pact of discounting is not significant.

39.9

Carrying Less than one More than one
amount year year
Financial liabilities as at
30th June 2025
Trade and other payables 691,720,526 691,720,526 -
Accrued and deferred mark-up 1,155,978,163 206,133,033 949,845,130
Short term borrowing - secured 189,249,213 189,249,213 -
Long term financing 1,642,658,181 999,233,157 643,425,024

Financial liabilities as at
30th June 2024

3,679,606,083

2,086,335,929

1,593,270,154

Trade and other payables 812,590,218 812,590,218 -
Accrued and deferred mark-up 1,227,920,031 690,347,768 537,572,263
Short term borrowing - secured 189,249,213 189,249,213 -
Long term financing 2,116,014,249 1,317,507,615 798,506,635

4,345,773,711 3,009,694,813 1,336,078,898

Biological asset

The Company is exposed to financial risks arising from fluctuations in the market prices of
its biological assets. While management does not anticipate significant adverse movements
in these prices in the near term, the Company continues to monitor market conditions and
regularly reviews its pricing outlook to assess the need for active financial risk management.

40 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORIES
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Investment in a subsidiary are

carried at cost. The carrying values of all other financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial
statements approximate their fair value.
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Note

40.1 Financial assets at amortized cost

The Company hold the following financial instruments measured at amortized cost, as at

balance sheet date;

Trade debts 1,957,175,823 1,003,306,138

Loans and advances
Deposits and prepayments
Short term investment

780,233 684,000
13,307,399 31,469,707

= 6,230,575

Cash and bank balances 326,678,557 157,442,171

2,297,942,012 _1,199,132,592

Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Trade and other payables 691,720,526 672,656,682
Accrued and deferred mark-up 949,845,130 537,572,263
Employee benefit obligation 155,732,118 122,331,005
Short term borrowings 189,249,213 189,249,213
Long term borrowings 1,642,658,181 2,116,014,249

3,629,205,168 _3,637,823,412

40.2 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements
approximate their fair values. Fair value is determined on the basis of objective evidence at

each reporting date.

Financial Instruments carried at fair value are categorized as follow:

Level 1: Quoted market price.
Level 2: Valuation techniques (market observables) - (Nil)
Level 3: Valuation techniques (non-market observables) - (Nil)

40.3 Capital risk management

The company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the company’s ability
to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of

capital.

The Company monitors capital using debt to equity and gearing ratio.

The gearing ratio as at June 30, 2024 and 2025 are as follows:

Interest bearing bank borrowings 1,831,907,394 2,305,263,462
Total Equity 7,860,927,365 5,341,352,414
Debt to Equity ratio 23.3% 43.2%
Gearing ratio 18.9% 30.1%
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Birds (million)

1 PLANT PRODUCTION CAPACITY (ANNUAL)

Total capacity 38.4 38.4
Birds processed / sold 11.31 7.35
Percentage of total capacity 29% 19%

41.1 Capacity is calculated on the basis of slaughtering of 6,000 birds per hour.

41.2 The Company operated the plant considering the market demand and supply of the products.

42  TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES (ASSOCIATES)

421 Details of transactions with related parties during the year, other than those which have
been disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, are as follows:

Nature of Transactions

Grand Parent Poultry (Pvt.) Ltd. Rent of Office 1,200,000 924,000
Big Bird Poultry Breeders (Pvt.) Ltd. |Purchase of day old broiler 563,774,380 -
Big Feed (Pvt.) Ltd. Purchase of poultry feed 1,352,086,002 -

1,917,060,382 924,000

Remuneration of key management is disclosed in note # 43

42.2 Following are the related parties with whom the Company had entered into transactions or have
arrangement /agreement in place:

Name Relationship Shareholding

Grand Parent Poultry (Pvt.) Ltd. Associated company by virtue of Nil
common directorship

Big Bird Poultry Breeders (Pvt.) Ltd. Associated company by virtue of Nil
common directorship

Big Feed (Pvt.) Ltd. Associated company by virtue of Nil
common directorship

Oak and Teak Associated company by virtue of Nil
common directorship

Green Nature Farms Associated company by virtue of Nil

common directorship

The Company does not hold any share in the above mentioned companies.
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43 Remuneration of chief executive, directors and executives
Description 2025 2024
Director Executives Director Executives

Basic Salary 28,064,510 56,506,948 11,628,384 27,236,938
House rent 12,629,029 24,221,064 5,232,773 12,256,623
Medical 2,806,450 5,382,511 1,162,838 2,723,713
Total 43,499,989 86,110,523 18,023,995 42,217,274
Number of persons 6 49 4 15

43.1 Aggregate amount charged in the financial statements for meeting fee to three directors (2024: Nil directors)
was Rs. 3.95 million (2024: Rs Nil).

43.2 No remuneration is being withdrawn by other directors.

44 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES Numbers
Total number of employees 470 423
Average number of employees during the year 447 402

45  DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the company in
their meeting held on September 27, 2025.

46 CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Comparative figures have been rearranged, wherever necessary for the purpose of comparison.
However, no significant rearrangements have been made in these financial statements except as
disclosed below.

47  GENERAL

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupees unless otherwise stated.

&
v/

G Mo

Abdul Basit Abdul Karim
Chairman/Director Director

Muhammad Mustafa Kamal
CEO/Director

Muhammad Ali Ahsen
Chief Financial Officer
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Share Holding

No. of Shareholders From To Total Shares Held
1314 1 100 51,883
1313 101 500 421,506

923 501 1000 791,230
1763 1001 5000 4,744,605
503 5001 10000 3975018
166 10001 15000 2,151,120
84 15001 20000 1,563,808
47 20001 25000 1095874
43 25001 30000 1,207,921
22 30001 35000 731,627
26 35001 40000 1,000,103
14 40001 45000 601,157
24 45001 50000 1,193,571
13 50001 55000 683,175
8 55001 60000 471,900

7 60001 65000 437,053
12 65001 70000 830,312
5 70001 75000 375,000

4 75001 80000 308,588

6 80001 85000 492,000

1 85001 50000 87,200

1 50001 95000 93910
12 95001 100000 1,196,251
6 100001 105000 615,124

3 110001 115000 340,895

1 115001 120000 120,000

2 125001 130000 256,000

1 130001 135000 134,400

4 140001 145000 572314

1 150001 155000 152,600

1 155001 160000 160,000

2 160001 165000 328,492

1 165001 170000 170,000

3 170001 175000 521,509

1 180001 185000 183,000

1 185001 190000 187,500

5 195001 200000 1,000,000

1 210001 215000 214,500

1 215001 220000 218813

1 225001 230000 230,000

1 235001 240000 238,000

1 240001 245000 244,000
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Share Holding

No. of Shareholders From To Total Shares Held
2 245001 250000 499,938
1 250001 255000 250,500
1 270001 275000 275,000
1 275001 280000 280,000
1 285001 290000 289915
1 360001 365000 361,964
1 375001 380000 380,000
1 395001 400000 400,000
1 455001 460000 459,020
2 465001 470000 934,000
1 495001 500000 500,000
1 580001 585000 580,995
2 595001 600000 1,200,000
1 600001 605000 603,438
1 650001 655000 651,822
1 805001 810000 807,440
1 835001 840000 840,000
1 875001 880000 877,804
1 955001 960000 958,545
1 985001 990000 985,210
2 995001 1000000 2,000,000
1 1195001 1200000 1,200,000
1 1255001 1260000 1,259,143
1 1370001 1375000 1,370,349
1 1425001 1430000 1,425,007
1 2215001 2220000 2,216,593
1 2970001 2975000 2,970,930
1 3275001 3280000 3,279,611
1 3895001 3900000 3,900,000
1 4365001 4370000 4,367,924
1 7470001 7475000 7,472,459
1 9735001 9740000 9,737,050
1 10180001 10185000 10,185,000
1 17825001 17830000 17,825,580
1 23765001 23770000 23,767,440
1 32680001 32685000 32,680,230
1 36640001 36645000 36,641,470
1 45550001 45555000 45,554,260
1 48525001 48530000 48,525,190

6,391 298,905,786
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Categories of shareholders Shares Held Percentage
Directors, Chief Executive Officer, and their spouse and 207,965,101 69.57
minor children.
Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties.
NIT and ICP 68,486 0.022
Banks Development Financial Institutions, 13,631,936 6.00
Non-Banking Financial Institutions.
Insurance Companies 1,243,947 0.41
Modarabas and Mutual Funds 4,243,111 1.41
General Public
a. Local 67,358,572 22.53
b. Foreign 215,889 0.07
Others (to be specified)
e Companies 1,251,545 0.41
¢ Provident/Pension/Gratuity Fund/Trusts etc. 2,626,449 0.87
e Cooperative Societies 27 0
¢ Investment Companies 300,723 0.10
298,905,786 100
Shareholders holding 10% or more 163,401,150 54.65
Abdul Basit 32,680,230 10.93
Muhammad Mustafa Kamal 45,554,260 15.24
Abdul Karim 48,525,190 16.23
Salman Basit 36,641,470 12.25
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL
GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that 14th Annual General Meeting of Big Bird Foods Limited will be held on October 28, 2025
at 11:30 am, Park Lane Hotel, 107 — B3 — MM Alam Road, Gulberg lll, Lahore, to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1.

2.

To confirm the minutes of last Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on October 28, 2024.

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended June 30,
2025 together with the Auditors’ and Directors’ Report thereon.

To re-appoint Auditors of the Company for the year ending on June 30, 2026 and to fix their remuneration. The
Board of Directors on the recommendation of Audit Committee of the Company has proposed re-appointment of
M/s Abdul Khalig & Co. (Chartered Accountant) as external auditors.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

4.

To consider, ratify and approve the transactions carried out with related parties for the year ended June 30, 2025,
and to pass the following Special Resolution(s) with or without modification(s):

“RESOLVED THAT the transactions carried out by the Company with all the related parties during the year ended
June 30, 2025, as disclosed in Notes No. 18 and 42 of the Financial Statements for the year ended June 30,
2025, be and are hereby ratified and approved.”

To authorize Chief Executive of the Company to approve transactions with Related Parties for the year ending
June 30,2026 by passing the following special resolution with or without modification.

“RESOLVED THAT the Chief Executive of the Company be and is hereby authorized to approve the transactions
with Related Parties during the period ending June 30, 2026.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT these transactions shall be placed before the shareholders in the next Annual
General Meeting for their ratification/ approval.”

To Consider and approve the conversion of unsecured directors’ loans of Rs. 1,500,000,000/- into equity of the
Company by issuance of ordinary shares, otherwise than by way of rights, subject to the approval of the Securities
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 83(1)(b) of the Companies Act, 2017, the Articles of Association of
the Company and subject to the approval of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP)
and completion of all statutory formalities, the conversion of unsecured directors’ loans amounting to Rs.
1,500,000,000/- (Rupees One Billion Five Hundred Million only) into equity of the Company by way of issuance of
30,352,084 (Thirty Million Three Hundred Fifty-Two Thousand Eighty-Four) ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each at an
issue price of Rs. 49.42 per share, otherwise than by way of rights, be and is hereby approved.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the ordinary shares to be issued against such conversion shall rank Pari Passu in
all respects with the existing ordinary shares of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Chief Executive Officer and/or the Company Secretary of the Company be and
are hereby authorized, jointly and severally, to take all necessary, incidental, and consequential actions for effecting
the allotment of shares including the preparation and filing of statutory forms, applications and returns with the
SECP, Pakistan Stock Exchange and any other competent authority.

To consider and, if thought fit, to approve the amendment in the Directors Remuneration Policy and to pass, with
or without modifications, the following resolution as special resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the following new Clause 6 be inserted into the Directors’ Remuneration Policy, subject to
shareholders’ approval:
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6. Amendment in the Directors’ Remuneration Policy

The Board of Directors shall be authorized to review, amend, and implement changes to the Directors’ Remuneration
Policy from time to time, as deemed appropriate.”

Any Other Business
8. To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.

The statements under Section 134 (3) of the Companies Act, 2017 setting out the material facts are annexed herewith.

BY THE ORDER OF THE BOARD

4

Muhammad Riaz
Company Secretary

Lahore,
Dated: OCTOBER 07, 2025

Notes:

1. Book Closure:
The share transfer books of the Company will be closed from October 22, 2025 to October 28, 2025 (both days
inclusive). Transfer requests received at the Office of the Share Registrar of the Company, M/s Digital Custodian
Company Limited Pardesi House, Old Queens Road, Karachi at the close of business on October 21, 2025 will
be treated in time for the purpose of attendance of AGM and as applicable.

2. Participation in the AGM through Video link Facility

i) Shareholders interested in attending the AGM through online facility are hereby requested to get themselves
registered with the Company Secretary not later than 48 hours before the time of the AGM (i.e. by October 25,
2025, 11:00 am) with the subject “Registration for the BBFL AGM” through an email corporate@bigbirdgroup.

com.pk along with a valid scanned copy of their CNIC.

Shareholders are advised to provide the following particulars,

Name of the CNIC No. CDC Account Cell Number Email Address No. of shares

member No./Folio No.

The details of the electronic facility (video-link and the log in credentials) will be sent to the interested shareholders,
at their provided email addresses. The login facility will be opened thirty minutes before the commencement of
AGM, enabling the participants to join the meeting after the identification and verification process.

The shareholders may submit their respective questions/comments/suggestions along with their Name and Folio
Number on the email address, provided above; ahead of or during the AGM.

3. Appointment of Proxies:

i) Members entitled to attend and vote at the AGM may appoint another member as his/her Proxy to attend, speak
and vote at the AGM on his/her behalf.
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The instrument appointing Proxy and the power of attorney or other authority under which it is signed or a
notarized/attested copy of power of attorney must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, not
later than 48 hours before the time of the AGM. A member cannot appoint more than one proxy. Form of Proxy is
being mailed to shareholders.

Change in Address

Shareholders are requested to notify the Company’s Share Registrar if there is any change in their registered
postal addresses.

E-Voting/ Postal Ballot:

The members are hereby notified that pursuant to the Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018 read with
Sections 143-145 of the Companies Act, 2017 and SRO 2192(1)/2022 dated 5th December 2022, members
will be allowed to exercise their right to vote through electronic voting facility or voting by post for the special
business(es) in its forthcoming Annual General Meeting to be held on October 28, 2025, at 11:30 AM., in
accordance with the conditions as specified in the said regulations.

CDC Account Holders:

CDC Account Holders will further have to follow the under mentioned guidelines as laid down in Circular No. 1 of
2000 dated January 26, 2000, issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

For Attending the AGM:

In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose securities are in group
account and their registration details are uploaded as per the CDC Regulations, shall authenticate his/her identity
by showing his/her Original Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) or original passport at the time of attending
the meeting.

In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ Resolution/Power of Attorney with specimen signature of the
nominee shall be produced (unless it has been provided earlier) at the time of the meeting.

For Appointing Proxies:

In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose securities are in group
account and their registration details are uploaded as per the CDC Regulations, shall submit the Proxy form as
per the above requirement.

The Proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be
mentioned on the Form.

Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the Proxy shall be furnished with the Proxy
form.

The Proxy shall produce his/her original CNIC or original passport at the time of the AGM.

In case of a corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ Resolution /Power of Attorney with specimen signature shall
be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) along with the Proxy Form to the Company.

Submission of copy of CNIC/NTN (Mandatory)

Individual members who have not yet submitted photocopy of their valid CNIC to the Company/ Share Registrar,
are once again requested to send their CNIC (copy) at the earliest directly to the Company’s Share Registrar, M/s
Digital Custodian Company Limited - Pardesi House, Old Queens Road, Karachi. Corporate entities are requested
to provide their National Tax Number (NTN). Please also give Folio Number with the copy of CNIC/NTN details.
Availability and Transmission of Annual Audited Financial Statements:

In accordance with the provision of Section 223 of the Companies Act, 2017, the audited financial statements of

the Company for the year ended June 30, 2025 are available on the Company’s website {https://bigbirdfoods.
com/}.
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b. The Annual Report shall be circulated via email to those shareholders whose email addresses are present in the
records/database of the Share Registrar.

c. Inpursuance of the directions given by SECP vide S.R.O. 389 (1)/2023 dated March 21, 2023, those shareholders
who desire to receive a hard copy of the Annual Financial Statements are advised to give their formal consent
along with their valid email address on the “Standard Request Form”.

d. For convenience of shareholders, the “Standard Request Form” for provision of Annual Audited Financial
Statements is available on the Company’s website [https://www.bigbirdfoods.com/].

e. Any shareholder requiring a printed copy of the Annual Audited Financial Statements shall be provided with a copy
free of cost within seven working days of receipt of such request.

9. Deposit of Physical Shares into CDC Account

Section 72 (2) of the Companies Act, 2017, provides that every existing company shall be required to replace
its physical shares with book-entry form, in a manner as may be specified and from the date notified by the
SECP, within a period not exceeding four (4) years of the date of the promulgation of the Act. Further, SECP vide
its letter dated 26 March 2022 has directed listed companies to pursue their shareholders holding securities
in physical form to convert the same in the book-entry form. To ensure compliance with the aforementioned
provision and to benefit by holding securities in book-entry form, including safe custody, all shareholders holding
physical shareholdings are again encouraged to open CDC sub-account or Investor account and convert their
shares into book-entry form, as the trading of physical shares is not permitted as per existing regulations of the
Pakistan Stock Exchange.

STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 134 (3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017

This statement set out the material facts concerning the special business to be transacted at the Annual General
Meeting of the Company to be held on October 28, 2025.

Agenda Item No. 4
Transactions carried out with associated companies and directors during the year ended June 30, 2025.

The related party transactions carried out in normal course of business and at arm’s length basis were being placed
periodically before the Audit Committee of the Company and upon recommendations of the Audit Committee;
the same were placed before the Board for review and approval pursuant to clause 15 of the Listed Companies
Corporate Governance Regulations, 2019.

During the Board meetings, it was pointed out by the Directors that as the majority of Company Directors were
interested in certain transaction(s) due to their common directorship and holding of shares in the associated
companies, the quorum of directors could not be formed for approval of these transaction, therefore, the Board
has recommended for placement of the same before the shareholders of the Company in general meeting for
ratification/ approval.

In view of the above, the transactions conducted during the financial year ended June 30, 2025 with associated
companies and directors as shown in notes no. 18 and 42 to the Audited Financial Statements for year ended
June 30, 2025 are being placed before the shareholders for their consideration and approval/ratification.

Agenda Item No. 5
Authorization to Chief Executive Officer for Approval of Related Party Transactions (RPTs)

The Company shall be conducting transactions with its related parties during the year ending June 30, 2026
on an arm’s length basis as per the approved policy with respect to ‘transactions with related parties’ in the
normal course of business. The majority of Directors are interested in these transactions due to their common
directorship in the associated companies.

In order to comply with the provisions of clause 15 of Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019, the shareholders may authorize the Chief Executive Officer to approve transactions carried out
and to be carried out in normal course of business with associated companies/related parties on case to case
basis from July 01, 2025 till the next period ending June 30, 2026.
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The Directors are interested in the resolution to the extent of their common directorships and their shareholding in
the associated companies.

Agenda Item No. 6

The Company has obtained financial assistance from its directors in the form of an unsecured loan amounting
to Rs. 1,500,000,000 (Rupees One Billion Five Hundred Million only) to meet its working capital and operational
requirements.

In order to strengthen the financial position of the Company, to reduce its debt burden and align the long-term
interests of the directors with the shareholders, the Board of Directors has recommended to capitalize the said
loan through the issuance of ordinary shares to the directors.

Accordingly, the Board has proposed to issue 30,352,084 (Thirty Million Three Hundred Fifty-Two Thousand
Eighty-Four) fully paid ordinary shares of the Company of face value of Rs. 10/- each, at an issue price of Rs.
49.42 per share, in consideration of settlement of the outstanding directors’ loan of Rs. 1.5 billion.

The issue price of Rs. 49.42 per share has been determined on the basis of the average market price of the
Company’s shares during the past 90 trading days preceding the date of the Board’s Proposal.

This issuance is proposed to be made under Section 83 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the Companies (Further
Issue of Shares) Regulations, 2020, otherwise than by way of right offer to the existing shareholders.

The proposed issuance is subject to the approval of members in the Annual General Meeting and subsequent
approval/clearance from the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) and other regulatory
authorities, as applicable.

Since a majority of the directors are interested in the aforesaid transaction, the Board, instead of granting approval,
only placed the proposal for consideration. It was resolved that the final approval for the allotment of shares shall
be sought from the shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Agenda Item No. 7
Amendments in the Directors Remuneration Policy

The shareholders of the Company approved the Directors’ Remuneration Policy through special resolution passed
at the Annual General Meeting held on October 28, 2024.

Given that the Directors’ Remuneration Policy may require revisions from time to time in light of evolving
circumstances, it is proposed that the authority to make such amendments be delegated to the Board of Directors.
This would avoid the need to seek shareholders’ approval for each revision, thereby promoting efficiency and
flexibility in governance.

It is pertinent to note that, pursuant to Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2017, the remuneration of directors
may be determined either by the Board of Directors or by the shareholders in a general meeting, in accordance
with the provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company. Clause 45 of the Articles of Association of the
Company provides:

“The remuneration of Directors including Independent, Non-Executive & Executive Directors shall from time to time
be determined by the company in the Board Meeting subject to the provisions of the Act.”

In view of the above, it is intended to insert a new clause in the Directors’ Remuneration Policy authorizing the
Board to amend the policy from time to time, subject to compliance with applicable laws.

The Directors/ Chief Executive of the Company have no interest, directly or indirectly, in this special business
except in their capacities as directors/Chief Executive/shareholders and the entitlements to their remunerations.
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BALLOT PAPER FOR VOTING
THROUGH POST

14" Annual General Meeting of Big Bird Foods Limited to be held on October 28, 2025, at 11:30 a.m. at Park
Lane Hotel, 107 — B3 — MM Alam Road, Gulberg I, Lahore and through video conferencing. (Website: https://www.
bigbirdfoods.com/)

Name of shareholder/ proxy holder
Registered Address

CNIC No./Passport No (in case of foreigner) (copy to be
attached)

Number of shares held and folio number

Additional Information and enclosures
(In case of representative of body corporate, corporation and Federal Government)

Name of Authorized Signatory:

Certified True Copy of Resolution
CNIC/NICOP/Passport No. (Valid copy to be enclosed)

Copy of Board Resolution/Copy of the Power of Attorney,
attested by the Oath Commissioner.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR POLL

—

Please indicate your vote by ticking (v/) the relevant box.
2. In case both boxes are marked as (v), your ballot paper shall be treated as “Rejected”.

I/we hereby exercise my/our vote in respect of the following Special Resolutions through postal ballot by conveying
my/our assent or dissent to the following resolution by placing tick (v ) mark in the appropriate box below:

I/We assentto  |/We dissent to

Nature and description of Resolution the Resolution  the Resolution
(FOR) (AGAINST)

Agenda No. 4

To consider, ratify and approve the transactions carried out with related
parties for the year ended June 30, 2025, and to pass the following Special
Resolution(s) with or without modification(s):

“RESOLVED THAT the transactions carried out by the Company with all the
related parties during the year ended June 30, 2025, as disclosed in Notes
No. 18 and 42 of the Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2025,
be and are hereby ratified and approved.”

Agenda No. 5

To authorize Chief Executive of the Company to approve transactions with
Related Parties for the year ending June 30, 2026 by passing the following
special resolution with or without modification.

“RESOLVED THAT the Chief Executive of the Company be and is hereby
authorized to approve the transactions with Related Parties during the period
ending June 30, 2026.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT these transactions shall be placed before
the shareholders in the next Annual General Meeting for their ratification/
approval.”
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I/We assentto I/We dissent to

Nature and description of Resolution the Resolution  the Resolution
(FOR) (AGAINST)

Agenda No. 6

To consider and approve the conversion of unsecured directors’ loans of Rs.
1,500,000,000/- into equity of the Company by issuance of ordinary shares,
otherwise than by way of rights, subject to the approval of the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 83(1)(b) of the Companies Act, 2017,
the Articles of Association of the Company and subject to the approval of the
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) and completion
of all statutory formalities, the conversion of unsecured directors’ loans
amounting to Rs. 1,500,000,000/- (Rupees One Billion Five Hundred Million
only) into equity of the Company by way of issuance of 30,352,084 (Thirty
Million Three Hundred Fifty-Two Thousand Eighty-Four) ordinary shares of
Rs. 10/- each at an issue price of Rs. 49.42 per share, otherwise than by way
of rights, be and is hereby approved.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the ordinary shares to be issued against such
conversion shall rank Pari Passu in all respects with the existing ordinary
shares of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Chief Executive Officer and/or the
Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby authorized, jointly
and severally, to take all necessary, incidental, and consequential actions
for effecting the allotment of shares including the preparation and filing of
statutory forms, applications and returns with the SECP, Pakistan Stock
Exchange and any other competent authority.”

Agenda No. 7
To consider and, if thought fit, to approve the amendment in the Directors

Remuneration Policy and to pass, with or without modifications, the following
resolution as special resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the following new Clause 6 be inserted into the Directors’
Remuneration Policy, subject to shareholders’ approval:

6. Amendment in the Directors’ Remuneration Policy

The Board of Directors shall be authorized to review, amend, and implement
changes to the Directors’ Remuneration Policy from time to time, as deemed
appropriate.”
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Notes:

1. Duly filled ballot paper should be sent to the Company Secretary of Big Bird Foods Limited/ Share Registrar or
through email at corporate@bigbirdgroup.com.pk with the subject line as ‘Postal Ballot’.

Copy of CNIC / Passport (In case of foreigner) should be enclosed with the ballot paper.

Ballot paper should reach the Company Secretary with business hours by or before October 27, 2025. Any postal
ballot received after this date, will not be considered for voting.

Signature on ballot paper should match with signature on CNIC/ Passport.
Incomplete, unsigned, incorrect, defaced, torn, mutilated, overwritten ballot paper will be rejected.

In case of Corporate Entity, the Board of Directors’ Resolution/ Power of Attorney with specimen signature and
attested copy of valid CNIC of the nominee (unless it has been provided earlier) should be enclosed with the ballot
paper.

7. Ballot paper has also been placed on the website of the Company at https://bigbirdfoods.com/investor-relation/.
Members may download the ballot paper from the website.

Signatures of Shareholder(s)/ Proxy Holder Signature /Authorized Signatory
(In case of corporate entity, please affix company stamp)

Place: Date:
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GENDER PAY
GAP DISCLOSURE

Big Bird Foods Limited iscommitted totransparencyin pay practicesand faircompensation
for all employees. In line with the SECP's directive on gender pay gap disclosure, BBF has
reviewed its wage data across the organization.

While differences exist due to variations in role, experience, and systemic business factors,
BBF is taking steps to reduce the gender pay gap by ensuring consistent pay structures,
benchmarking compensation against business best practices, and actively promoting
women into higher-level roles.

The current gender pay gap analysis is as follows:

Mean Gender Pay Gap: 14.0%
Median Gender Pay Gap: 7.80%
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Folio Number .....................

FORM OF PROXY

A=
O e being a member of
Big Bird Foods Limited hereby appoint Mr..... ... another

member of the company as my/our proxy in my/our absence to attend and vote for me/us and on my/our
behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Tuesday, October 28, 2025, at 11:30
AM at Park Lane Hotel, 107-B3, M.M Alam Road, Gulberg lll, Lahore and any adjournment thereof.

SIGNATURE OF MEMBER

Note

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at this meeting may appoint another member as his/her proxy
to attend and vote his/her behalf. Proxies in order to be effective must be received at the Registered
Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the meeting.

2. The instrument appointing a proxy should be signed by the member or by his attorney duly authorized

in writing. If a member is a corporation, its common seal should be affixed to the instrument.
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Address:

2-A Ahmad Block, New Garden Town Lahore, Pakistan
UAN: +92-42-111-111-220

Phone: +92-42-35835373-74, 35837512-14

Email: corporate@bigbirdgroup.com.pk

Website: www.bigbirdfoods.com




